# **Guide to the Miner Searle Bates Papers**

RG 10



Compiled by Martha Lund Smalley

1983

409 Prospect Street New Haven, CT 06511 (203) 432-5301 divinity.library@yale.edu http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections

# **Table of Contents**

Collection Overview	4
Requesting Instructions	4
Administrative Information	
Immediate Source of Acquisition	
Conditions Governing Access	
Preferred Citation	
Processing Information	
Biographical / Historical	
Scope and Contents	
Arrangement	
Collection Contents	
Series I: Correspondence, 1920-1978, undated	
Family Correspondence	
Correspondence of family members	
China Era Correspondence	. 11
General Correspondence	
Series II: China notes and sources, 1836-1978, undated	
A. By Outline Number	. 19
I. 1890-1906	. 19
II. 1907-1922	. 20
III. 1922-1937	. 20
IV. 1937-1950	. 22
B. By Author or Editor of Source	. 22
C. By Author (Periodical Articles)	
D. From Periodicals	32
E. Miscellaneous - 3" x 5" Format	
Arranged by time periods	. 35
Arranged by topic	35
Miscellaneous bibliographic references	. 35
F. Miscellaneous - 5 1/2" x 8 1/2" Format	. 35
Topically arranged within time periods	35
Topically arranged or unsorted	. 36
G. Miscellaneous - 8 1/2" x 11" and odd-sized format	
Related to organizations	. 36
Related to conferences	. 38
Topics	. 38
H. Chinese Language Sources	
Series III: "Christian Effort in Chinese Society" drafts	. 45
I. 1890-1906	. 45
A. The China Scene	. 45
B. The Christian Effort: activities and practices	. 47
C. Trends in Christian effort	. 48
II. 1907-1922	. 48
A. National Scene in its Bearing on Christian Effort	. 48
B. Christian Efforts	
III. 1922-1937	. 50
A. National Scene in its Bearing on Christian Effort	. 50
B. Christian Efforts - Activities and Interests	
IV. 1937-1950	. 51
A. National Scene, In its Bearing on Christian Effort	
B. Christian Efforts	

C. Summary, Interpretation, Perspective	. 52
Series IV: Documentation of prominent Chinese Christians	. 53
Lists	53
Notes	54
Information Contributed by Others	
Biographical Sketches of Chinese Christians	. 56
Series V: Other notes and collected material, 1928-1978, undated	
3" x 5" Format Notes	. 58
5 1/2" x 8 1/2" Format Notes	58
Mixed Format Notes and Collected Material	. 58
Related to Organizations	
Topics	. 59
Addendum	
Series VI: Writings, 1924-1975, undated	. 62
Articles, Pamphlets, Papers	. 62
Book Reviews	. 71
Reports and Memoranda from China	. 71
Sermons, Addresses, Interviews	
Related to Major Works	. 71
Series VII: Course-related materials, 1942-1965, undated	
Series VIII: Personal items and memorabilia	. 75
Memorabilia / biographical documentation	. 75
Address books, cards	. 75
Diaries, memo books	. 75
Medical records	. 75
Passports, military passes, identification certificates	. 75
Material related to family members	. 75
Notebooks	. 76
Photographs	. 76
elected Search Terms	. 77

# **Collection Overview**

REPOSITORY:	Yale Divinity Library 409 Prospect Street New Haven, CT 06511 (203) 432-5301 divinity.library@yale.edu http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections
CALL NUMBER:	RG 10
CREATOR:	Bates, M. Searle (Miner Searle), 1897-1978
TITLE:	Miner Searle Bates papers
DATES:	1836-1979
PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION:	55 linear feet (132 boxes)
LANGUAGE:	English
SUMMARY:	These papers document Bates' career as a missionary, academic, and author. They also include an extensive collection of information for his book on Christian effort in Chinese society from 1900 to 1950, which he was in the process of writing at the time of his death. There are over 3,000 pages of drafts for this book included in the collection. The papers include correspondence, notes, writings, and printed material related to Bates' work in Nanjing (Nanking), China, particularly his role in relief work during World War II. Miner Searle Bates (1897-1978) was educated at Hiram College (B.A., 1916), Oxford University (B.A., 1919; M.A., 1920), and Yale University (Ph.D., 1935). He was a missionary, professor of history at the University of Nanking, China from 1920-1950, organizing member of Nanking International Safety Zone Committee and chairman of Nanking International Relief Committee,

1950-1965. **ONLINE FINDING AID:** To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: <u>https://</u> hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.010

1939-1941, and professor of missions, Union Theological Seminary, New York,

# **Requesting Instructions**

To request items from this collection for use on site, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.010.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box

f. folder

# Administrative Information

# **Immediate Source of Acquisition**

Gift of the Bates family.

# **Conditions Governing Access**

The materials are open for research.

# **Preferred Citation**

Miner Searle Bates Papers (RG 10), Special Collections, Yale Divinity Library.

# **Processing Information**

Place names were modernized in the description, with the name originally used in the collection material or in an older version of the finding aid in parenthesis: e.g. "Beijing (Peking)" or "Benin (Dahomey)".

# **Biographical / Historical**

Date	Event
1897 May 28	○ Born in Newark, Ohio
1916	$_{\odot}$ B.A. Hiram College, of which father, Miner Lee Bates, was President 1908-1930
1916-1917	$_{\odot}$ Oxford University, Rhodes Scholar
1917-1918	$_{\odot}$ Secretary for International Y.M.C.A. on war service, India and Mesopotamia
1919-1920	$_{\odot}$ Oxford University; completed B.A. in Honour School of Modern History, two further terms in political science and general history for M.A.
1920 July	$_{\odot}$ Commissioned as missionary of United Christian Missionary Society
1920-1950	$_{\odot}$ Professor of History, University of Nanking, China
1923	$_{\odot}$ Married Lilliath Robbins who became the mother of Morton Gaylord (1926) and Robert Searle (1928)
1934-1935	$_{\odot}$ Rockefeller Foundation Fellow in Harvard University
1935	○ Ph.D., Yale University
1936-1941	$_{\odot}$ Seven visits to Japan on behalf of Christian organizations
1937-1941	<ul> <li>Remained in Nanjing (Nanking) when University of Nanking removed to Chengdu (Chengtu), West China, in charge of maintenance of University activities and properties. Organizing member, Nanking International Safety Zone Committee.</li> <li>Member and chairman (1939-1941) of Nanking International Relief Committee.</li> </ul>
1950-1965	$_{\odot}$ Professor of Missions, Union Theological Seminary, New York

Date	Event
1978	$_{\circ}$ Died

For additional information see Series VIII, Box 126, Folder 1132.

# Scope and Contents

Bates was a faithful collector of letters, reports, and writings relating to his own life and work. He was a thorough, if somewhat disorganized, scholar, familiar with nearly all available publications in his field of specialization. Being the personal records of a professional historian, the Bates Papers provide not only documentation of Bates' own career as missionary, academic and author, but also an impressive collection of information related to the history of Christianity in China.

Bates' work in China spanned the years 1920 to 1950 and included leadership roles at the University of Nanking and in relief work during World War II. He was a highly educated missionary, who observed and reported on the Chinese context in which he lived. Following his return from China, Bates continued to be prominent in the field of missions as a professor at Union Seminary and author of many articles and papers. His expertise was much in demand by organizations such as the International Missionary Council, World Council of Churches, National Council of Churches, and United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia. He was called upon to participate in many study groups and conferences.

It was no doubt the extent of these demands, added to Bates' own penchant for thoroughness, which prevented the completion of his magnum opus. At the time of his death in 1978 Bates had been striving for over fifteen years to produce a concise survey of Christian effort in Chinese society from 1900 to 1950. By 1971 he had developed "card indexes for several thousand books, pamphlets, articles seen to be of value or prospective value . . . " He had taken notes on major mission periodicals and yearbooks, on "documents of all types from China Continuation Committee 1913-1921, National Christian Council and its various units 1922-1950; about 200 biographies including Chinese; writings of a number of Chinese leaders; selected Chinese journals; histories of individual missions, organizations, institutions, many dissertations and theses, selected unpublished papers, letters and 'oral history' transcriptions". (From "Some Indicators of What Has Been Done," Series III Box 116, Folder 993.) These raw materials -- bibliographic references, notes, and annotated photocopies -- comprise a major portion of this manuscript group. In many cases, the information Bates had collected is readily available elsewhere, but there is also unique material here. The over 3,000 pages of drafts which Bates had completed by 1978 constitute a major achievement in themselves.

Series I, Correspondence, is divided into three sections: Family Correspondence, China Era Correspondence (from the period when Bates was serving in China) and General Correspondence (primarily from the period after Bates' return from China). Of particular interest in the Family Correspondence are letters written by Bates to wife and sons during 1937 and 1938 when he was serving as an organizing member of the Nanking International Safety Zone Committee, chairman of the Nanking International Relief Committee, director of economic and social surveys, and investigator of opium and heroin traffic in Japanese-occupied territory. These letters, those in the China Era Correspondence from the same time period, and reports and memoranda found in Series II and Series VI together provide detailed description of a turbulent situation.

The family letters include letters such as one from Bates to his sister regarding the mental health of a Ginling College professor. Informative circular letters written by Bates and his wife for distribution to friends and supporters are found in both the China and General Correspondence sections. Letters from colleagues and students seeking Bates' counsel or assistance form a large portion of the General Correspondence. There are also letters related to various projects and institutions with which Bates was involved, including the International Missionary Council China Study Project (1954-1956), the China Records Project (1968-1973), and the Missionary Research Library at Union Theological Seminary (1951-1978).

Series II, China Notes and Sources, contains the materials which Bates had gathered in preparation for writing his survey of Christian effort in China. This large mass of bibliographic references, handwritten and typed notes, summaries, and annotated photocopies came to the Library in a chaotic state. The materials have been organized in eight sections but since Bates often made carbon copies of notes and duplicated

photocopies for distribution in different categories, some of the material may appear in more than one section. A small amount of material related to China but without direct application to Bates' projected book has been included in this Series. The notes and sources of Series II are organized in eight categories:

A. Material arranged by outline number (according to outline devised by Bates).

B. Material arranged by author or editor of source monographs, essays and theses.

C. Periodical articles, arranged by author.

D. Notes, photocopies, and summaries from periodicals.

E. Miscellaneous notes and references on  $3'' \times 5''$  cards or sheets of paper.

F. Miscellaneous notes and references on  $5 \frac{1}{2''} \times 8 \frac{1}{2''}$  sheets of paper.

G. Mixed format notes and sources related to: organizations, conferences, topics.

H. Chinese language sources.

Whenever convenient, the material has been arranged according to the outline which Bates had devised, indicating time period and subject matter. In most cases, only material which is clearly marked with one outline number has been included Section A. The sorting was complicated by the fact that Bates apparently was working from more than one outline; some notes are clearly marked with an outline number which does not exist in the final outline or which does not represent the same subject area. These items have been filed under the correct outline number whenever possible. Bates often dictated running notes on an entire monograph, essay or thesis and then went back to indicate appropriate outline numbers in the margins of the typed copy. In other cases he photocopied sections of works and annotated the copies with outline numbers in the margins. Section B of Series II contains notes and photocopies which are applicable to more than one outline section and therefore could not be filed easily by outline number. This material has been filed by author, with titles provided for a selected list of more interesting or obscure monographs, essays or theses. Many of the sources represented in this section are widely available but others are unpublished theses, papers and memoirs which may be of considerable interest to researchers. Periodical articles by a variety of authors have been organized in Section C of Series II in order to indicate the types of source material which Bates collected and retained in his files. Some of these articles are readily available elsewhere while others are from fairly obscure journals. Bates spent a great deal of time systematically going through major mission periodicals to dictate notes on items of interest. Comprehensive notes are available in Section D on the China Christian Year Book, China Mission Year Book, China Missionary Bulletin, Chinese Recorder, Educational Review and other periodicals. The notes and references in 3" x 5" and 5 1/2" x 8 1/2" format of Sections E and F have been left in the order in which they were received. Extensive sorting would be required to find material of value among these myriad slips of paper. These include materials related to the Church of Christ in China, the International Missionary Council China Study Group, and the National Christian Council of China. Bates was very much at home with the Chinese language and also employed native Chinese speakers to take notes on Chinese language sources. The value of the notes, bibliographic references and photocopies of Chinese language sources in Section H will need to be determined by someone skilled in the Chinese language.

Series III, "Christian Effort in Chinese Society" Drafts, is in many ways the core of this manuscript group, containing over 3,000 pages of drafts for Bates' proposed book. The drafts include topical drafts that are write-ups of specific subjects, working drafts prepared to coincide with the detailed outline which Bates had developed, and revised working drafts, rewritten to improve their quality and decrease length. These drafts may be of more interest to the informed layperson than to the scholar. They are evaluated elsewhere by the work of Cynthia McLean for the National Council of Churches.

Series IV, Documentation of Prominent Chinese Christians, contains material collected by Bates as part of a project designed to supplement and complement his survey of Christian effort in Chinese society. In the first stage of this project Bates compiled a set of seven lists from various sources documenting Chinese Christians and sent the set to "Select Friends Whose Interest and Cooperation are Trusted". This effort resulted in a set of five revised lists which were broadly distributed to obtain corrections and additional information. Series IV contains full sets of lists from both stages of the project, drafts and notes related to them, and responses from over fifty individuals to whom the lists were sent. The Series concludes with a section of biographical sketches of varying completeness for twenty-seven Chinese Christians.

Series V contains notes and source materials collected by Bates that are not directly related to China. The first two sections of the Series, notes in  $3'' \times 5''$  and  $5 \frac{1}{2''} \times 8 \frac{1}{2''}$  format, have been left essentially

as they were received; some broad topical areas are indicated, but with little recognizable order. A third section of mixed format notes and collected material is somewhat more organized. Of particular interest are documents relating to various aspects of religious liberty.

Series VI documents in a very complete way Bates' writings on missions and Third World churches, religious liberty, and a host of other topics. The Series is divided into five sections:

- A. Articles, pamphlets, papers
- B. Book reviews
- C. Reports and memoranda from China
- D. Sermons, addresses, interviews
- E. Related to major works

The writings in section A date from throughout Bates' career. Not surprisingly, many of them relate to the religious and political situation in China. Bates wrote regularly for periodicals such as Christianity and Crisis and World Call; he contributed articles to various encyclopedias. The book reviews in section B were written by Bates; reviews of his own works are in section E. The reports and memoranda from China are primarily unpublished typescript materials and may be of considerable interest to researchers studying the situation in Nanjing (Nanking), especially during World War II.

The Course Related Materials of Series VII date primarily from Bates' years at Union Theological Seminary where he taught courses on missions, Christian ethics and practical theology. Bates was also a leading force in the Program of Advanced Religious Studies (PARS) at Union.

Series VIII, Personal items and memorabilia, contains detailed biographical information and other related materials.

## Arrangement

I. Correspondence, 1920-1978, undated II. China Notes and Sources, 1836-1978, undated III. "Christian Effort in Chinese Society" Drafts IV. Documentation of Prominent Chinese Christians V. Other Notes and Collected Material, 1928-1978, undated VI. Writings, 1924-1975, undated VII. Course Related Materials, 1942-1965, undated VIII. Personal Items and Memorabilia

# Collection Contents Series I: Correspondence, 1920-1978, undated

Series I is divided into three sections:

Family Correspondence China Era Correspondence General Correspondence

The Family Correspondence is arranged chronologically within the following categories:

1. Miner Searle Bates to/from his wife and sons

2. Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from mother of Miner Searle Bates

3. Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from father of Miner Searle Bates

4. Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to from siblings of Miner Searle Bates

5. Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from stepmother of Miner Searle Bates

6. Correspondence of family members other than Bates

a. Lilliath Bates (alphabetically arranged)

b. Miner Lee Bates

c. Others

The China Era Correspondence and the General Correspondence are arranged alphabetically by author or recipient other than Bates. Folders labeled with initials only (e.g. "A" or "B-C") are followed by separately labeled folders for notable individuals or organizations.

#### Family Correspondence

b. 1, f. 1-13	Miner Searle Bates to and from his wife and sons	1923-1938
b. 1, f. 1-4	1923–1936	1923–1936
b. 1, f. 5	1937 January-August Letter from Miner Searle Bates to his wife Lilliath, from Shanghai, January 11, 1937 Letter from Bates to LB, from Tokyo, March 23, 1937	1937 January- August
b. <b>1</b> , f. <b>6</b>	1937 September-October Letter to Lilliath Bates from Morton Bates (son), September 13, 1937 Letter to Lilliath Bates from Miner Searle Bates, September 13, 1937 Letter to Lilliath Bates from Miner Searle Bates, September 23, 1937 Letter to Lilliath Bates from Miner Searle Bates, October 2-4, 1937 Letter to Miner Searle Bates from Morton Bates, October 28, 1937	1937 September- October
b. <b>1</b> , f. <b>7</b>	<ul> <li>1937 November-December</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 14, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Minnie Vautrin to Bates, Nanking, November 19, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 8, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 5, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 17, 1937</li> <li>Postcard from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 28, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 28, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 28, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 28, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, November 28, 1937</li> <li>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking,</li> </ul>	1937 November- December

Family Correspondence > Miner Searle Bates to and from his wife and sons (continued)

b. 1, f. 8	• •	1938 January- February
	<u>1, 1938</u> Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, January	
	<u>3, 1938</u> Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, January	
	9, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, January	
	<u>16, 1938</u> Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates from Nanking, January	
	21, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, January	
	<u>29, 1938</u>	
	<u>Letter from Bates to his sons, from Nanking, January 30, 1938</u> Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, February	
	1, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, February 3, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, February	
	<u>11, 1938</u> Latter from Miner Searle Pates to Lillioth Pates, from Nanking, February	
	<u>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, February</u> 13, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, February 17, 1938	
b. 1, f. 9	1938 March-April	1938 March-
		April
	<u>is missing)</u> Lattar from Minor Saarla Patas to Lilliath Patas, March 5, 1028	
	<u>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, March 5, 1938</u> Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, March 12, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, March 15, 1938	
	Postcard from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, March 21, 1938?	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, March 21, 1938	
	<u>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, March 22, 1938</u> Postcard from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, March 30, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, April 2, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, April 20, 1938	
	Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, April 27, 1938	
	Letter from Bates to his son, Bobby, April 28, 1938	
	<u>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, April 30, 1938</u>	
b. 1, f. 10	1938 May	1938 May
	<u>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, May 11,</u>	
	<u>1938</u> Letter Constant Constant Deter to L'II'ette Deter Constant inc. Mar. 40	
	<u>Letter from Miner Searle Bates to Lilliath Bates, from Nanking, May 16, 1938</u>	
b. 1, f. 11-13	1938 June-December	1938 June-
		December
b. 2, f. 14-29		1939-1975, undated
b. 2, f. 30-31	Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from mother of Miner Searle Bates	1920-1921
b. 3, f. 32-35	Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from mother of Miner Searle Bates	1922-1925
b. 3, f. 36-39	Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from father of Miner Searle Bates	1921-1930

#### Family Correspondence (continued)

b. 3, f. 40-42	Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from siblings of Miner Searle Bates	1929-1978, undated
b. 3, f. 43	Miner Searle Bates and Lilliath Bates to/from stepmother of Miner Searle Bates	1930, undated
Corr	espondence of family members	
	Lilliath Bates	
b. 3, f. 44	C - D	
b. 3, f. 45	L- W	
b. 3, f. 46	First name only	
	Miner Lee Bates	
b. 3, f. 47	Miner Lee Bates	
	Others	
b. 3, f. 48	Others	
Chin	a Era Correspondence	
b. 4, f. 49	A	
b. 4, f. 50	B - C	
b. 4, f. 51-53	Bates circular letters	1927-1950, undated
b. 4, f. 53a	China International Famine Relief Commission	1938
b. 4, f. 54	Christian Church (Disciples of Christ)	1920-1950
b. 4, f. 55	E - F	
b. 4, f. 56	Fenn, William P. (see also: General correspondence)	1949-1950
b. 4, f. 57	Foreign Missions Conference of North America - China Committee	1947-1948, undated
b. 4, f. 58	G - I	
b. 4, f. 58	Haskell, Walter W.	1932
b. 4, f. 58	Higdon, E. K. (see: Christian Church - Disciples of Christ)	
b. 4, f. 59	Japanese Embassy, Nanjing (Nanking) Letter to Japanese Embassy from W. Plumer Mills to "Gentlemen", December 17, 1937 Letter from Chairman, Emergency Committee, University of Nanking to "Gentlemen", December 17, 1937 Letter from Chairman, Emergency Committee, University of Nanking to "Gentlemen", December 16, 1937 Letter from Chairman, Emergency Committee, University of Nanking to "Gentlemen", December 18, 1937 Letter from Robert O. Wilson to "Dear Sirs", December 19, 1937	1937-1939

#### China Era Correspondence (continued)

	Letter from Robert O. Wilson to "Dear Mr. Fukuda", December 21, 1937 Letter from Robert O. Wilson to "Gentlemen", December 22, 1937 Letter from Robert O. Wilson to "Dear Mr. Tanaka", December 25, 1937 Letter from Robert O. Wilson to "Gentlemen", December 27, 1937 Letter from Robert O. Wilson to "Gentlemen", December 30, 1937 Letter from Charles H. Riggs and Miner Searle Bates, "Gentlemen", December 30, 1937 Letter from Bates to "Gentlemen", December 31, 1937 Letter from Bates to "Gentlemen" and "Dear Mr. Allison", January 8 - 18, 1938 Letter from Bates to "Gentlemen", January 10, 1938 Letter from Bates to "Gentlemen", January 11, 1938 Letter from Bates to "Gentlemen", April 25, 1938 Letter from Bates to "Gentlemen", April 26, 1938 Letter from Bates to "Dear Mr. Hanawa", May 11, 1938 Letter from M.S. Bates to "Dear Mr. Horii", May 23, 1938	
b. 4, f. 59	Japanese Embassy, Shanghai Letter from M.S. Bates to "Dear Sir", September 10, 1938	1938
b. 4, f. 60	L <u>"Notes from Nanking" - Japan-China tensions -Manchuria, February 8, 1932</u>	
b. 4, f. 61	Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: General correspondence)	1948
b. 4, f. 61	Lobenstine, Edwin C.	1939
b. 4, f. 61	Luce, Henry	1946
b. 4, f. 62	M Letter from M.S. Bates to Rev. J.C. McKim, c/o Dr. John Wood, 281 Fourth Ave, New York City, regarding New York Times stories on Nanjing atrocities, April 2, 1938	
b. 4, f. 63	Nanking International Relief Committee Letter from Forster, Kearney and Mills to Bates congratulating him on service of Nanking International Relief Committee, May 1, 1941	1941
b. 4, f. 63	Nanking, University of; Board of Founders <u>"KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS"</u> (2 pages) Legal document by <u>Chairman of Board of University of Nanking, John W Decker, giving Bates</u> <u>power of attorney for U. of Nanking, March 28, 1938</u> <u>Letter from C.A. Evans to Bates informing of decision by board to give him</u> <u>power of attorney, April 2, 1938</u>	1937-1938
b. 4, f. 63	National Christian Council, Shanghai Letter from Bates to National Christian Council - return of missionaries to Nanjing, March 3, 1938	1938
b. 4, f. 64	P - T Letter from Lewis and Margaret Smythe in Nanjing to United Christian Missionary Society in Indianapolis, IN re: current situation in Nanjing, March 8, 1938 Virgil	
	See: <u>Christian Church - Disciples of Christ</u>	
b. 4, f. 65	Timperley, H.J.	1936-1938

#### China Era Correspondence (continued)

	Letter from H.J. Timperley (British author/reporter for the Manchester	
	Guardian) to Bates regarding idea for book on Nanking and China atrocities by Japanese, January 29, 1938	
	Letter to Dr. Hornbeck from Timperley regarding John Magee's film, written	
	from Shanghai American Club, February 16, 1938	
	Letter from H.J. Timperley to Bates about book project, mentions letter to Dr. Hornbeck, February 17, 1938	
	Letter from H.J. Timperley to Bates about editing and sources of book	
	project, February 4, 1938	
	Letter from Bates to Timperley about book project, March 3, 1938	
	Letter from Bates to Timperley about book project, March 14, 1938 Letter from Timperley to Bates about book project with book plan, March 14,	
	1938	
	Letter from Timperley to Bates about book project, March 21, 1938	
	Letter from Bates to Timperley about book project, March 21, 1938	
	Letter from Timperley to Bates about book project, March 25, 1938	
	<u>Letter from Timperley to Bates about book project, March 28, 1938</u>	
	Union Theological Seminary, New York See: <u>Charles Iglehart</u>	
b. 4, f. 66	United Board for Christian Colleges in China (see also: General	1948
	correspondence)	
b. 4, f. 66	United China Relief Christian Missionary Society (re: Christian Church - Disciples of Christ)	1941
b. 4, f. 67	United States Embassy, Nanjing (Nanking)	1938-1940
b. 5, f. 68	V - Y	
b. 5, f. 69	Van Dusen, Henry P. (see also: General correspondence)	1948-1950
b. 5, f. 70	First names, anonymous, fragments	
Gene	eral Correspondence	
b. 5, f. 71	Ab - Al	
b. 5, f. 72	Am	
b. 5, f. 73	An - Ay	
b. 5, f. 74	The American Oxonian and Rhodes Scholarship Trust	1965 -1978
b. 5, f. 75	Association of Professors of Missions	1954-1962
b. 5, f. 76	Ва	
b. 5, f. 77	Be - Bin	
b. 5, f. 78	Bis - Boh	
b. 5, f. 79	Boy - Bro	
b. 5, f. 80	Bru - By	
b. 5, f. 81	Bates circular letters	1950-1974

Beach, Robert F	
See: Missionary	Research Library, Union Theological Seminary, NY

	See. Missionary Research Library, Onion Theological Seminary, NT	
b. 5, f. 82	Beaver, R. Pierce	1951-1972
b. 5, f. 82	Bennett, John C.	1963-1969
	Bingle, Ernest J. See: International Missionary Council: China Study Project	
b. 5, f. 83	Boorman, Howard L.	1968-1971, undated
b. 5, f. 84	Boynton, Charles L.	1961-1964
b. 5, f. 85	Brown, Margaret H.	1951-1972
b. 6, f. 86	Са	
b. 6, f. 87	Cha	
b. 6, f. 88	Che	
b. 6, f. 89	Chi - Chu	
b. 6, f. 90	Cl	
b. 6, f. 91	Col	
b. 6, f. 92	Com - Coo	
b. 6, f. 93	Cor - Cr	
b. 6, f. 94	Chen, Theodore H. E.	1967-1968
b. 6, f. 96	China Records Project (see also: Yale Divinity School Library)	1968-1973
b. 6, f. 97	Cho, Kiyoko T.	1968-1977
b. 6, f. 98, 99	Christian Church (Disciples of Christ)	1950-1969, 1970-1977, undated
b. 6, f. 100	Copland, E. Bruce	1953-1968
b. 6, f. 101	D	
b. 6, f. 102	Decker, John W. (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study Project)	1950-1974
b. 6, f. 103	Ea - El	
b. 6, f. 104	En - Ev	
b. 6, f. 105	Fa - Fi	
b. 6, f. 106	Fl - Fu	
b. 6, f. 107	Fairbank, John K.	1966-1973

b. 7, f. 109Ga - Glb. 7, f. 110Go - Gub. 7, f. 111Hai - Harb. 7, f. 112Haw - Heb. 7, f. 113Hib. 7, f. 113Ho - Holb. 7, f. 114Hoo - Hsb. 7, f. 115Hoo - Hsb. 7, f. 116Hu - Hyb. 7, f. 117Hysper and Professors of Missionsb. 7, f. 118International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era orrespondence)b. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 121International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 121Joss. Francis P.b. 7, f. 121Joss. Francis P.b. 7, f. 123Joss. Francis P.b. 7, f. 124Ioss. Francis P.b. 7, f. 125Joss. Francis P.b. 7, f. 126La - Lib. 7, f. 127Keeny, Spurgeon M.b. 7, f. 128La - Lib. 7, f. 129La - Lib. 7, f. 130La - Lib. 7, f. 130La - Lib. 7, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)b. 8, f. 133Ma - McGb. 8, f. 134Macm - Matb. 8, f. 135Macm - Matb. 8, f. 136Macm - Matb. 8, f. 137Mi	b. 7, f. 108	Fenn, William P. (see also: China era correspondence)	1953-1975
b. 7, f. 111Hai - Harb. 7, f. 112Haw - Heb. 7, f. 113Hib. 7, f. 113Ho - Holb. 7, f. 114Ho - Holb. 7, f. 115Hoo - Hsb. 7, f. 116Hu - Hyb. 7, f. 117Harr, Wilbur C. Seasciation of Professors of Missionsb. 7, f. 117Hyslop, Ralph D.b. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)b. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 121Jest-1955b. 7, f. 121Jest-1955b. 7, f. 121Jest-1955b. 7, f. 124Jest-1955b. 7, f. 125Jest-1956b. 7, f. 126Jest-1956b. 7, f. 127Kb. 7, f. 128Keeny, Spurgeon M.b. 7, f. 129La - Lib. 7, f. 129La - Lib. 7, f. 129La - Lib. 7, f. 130Lu - Lyb. 8, f. 131Lu - Lyb. 8, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)b. 8, f. 133Mar - Matb. 8, f. 134Mar - Matb. 8, f. 135Mac - Matb. 8, f. 136Mac - Matb. 8, f. 136Macb. 8, f. 136Macb. 8, f. 136M	b. 7, f. 109	Ga - Gl	
b. 7, f. f12Haw - Heb. 7, f. f. 113Hib. 7, f. 114Ho - Holb. 7, f. 115Hoo - Hsb. 7, f. 115Hoo - Hsb. 7, f. 116Hu - Hyb. 7, f. 117Hyslop, Ralph D.b. 7, f. 117Hyslop, Ralph D.b. 7, f. 119Ib. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)b. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 121Jones, Francis P.b. 7, f. 121Jones, Francis P.b. 7, f. 125Jb. 7, f. 126Jones, Francis P.b. 7, f. 127Kb. 7, f. 128Keeny, Spurgeon M.b. 7, f. 129La - Lib. 7, f. 130Lob. 7, f. 131Lourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)b. 8, f. 133Macm - Matb. 8, f. 134Macm - Matb. 8, f. 135Macm - Matb. 8, f. 136Macm - Matb. 8, f. 136Macm - Matb. 8, f. 136Macm - Matb. 9, f. 136Macm - Matb. 9, f. 136Macm - Matb. 9, f. 136Macm - Mat <td< td=""><td>b. 7, f. 110</td><td>Go - Gu</td><td></td></td<>	b. 7, f. 110	Go - Gu	
b. 7, f. 113Hib. 7, f. 114Ho - Holb. 7, f. 115Hoo - Hsb. 7, f. 115Hou - Hyb. 7, f. 116Hu - Hyb. 7, f. 117Hyslop, Ralph D.b. 7, f. 117Hyslop, Ralph D.b. 7, f. 117Hyslop, Ralph D.b. 7, f. 118Ib. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era orrespondence)b. 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 121International Missionary Council: China Study Projectb. 7, f. 125Jb. 7, f. 126Jones, Francis P.b. 7, f. 127Kb. 7, f. 128Keeny, Spurgeon M.b. 7, f. 129La - Lib. 7, f. 130Lob. 7, f. 130Lob. 7, f. 131La - Lib. 7, f. 132Lacy. Creighton (see also: China era correspondence)b. 8, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)b. 8, f. 133Ma - McGb. 7, f. 136Macm - Matb. 8, f. 136Macb. 8, f. 136Mac	b. <b>7</b> , f. 111	Hai - Har	
b. 7, f. 114         Ho - Hol           b. 7, f. 115         Hoo - Hs           b. 7, f. 116         Hu - Hy           b. 7, f. 116         Hu - Hy           b. 7, f. 117         Harr, Wilbur C. See: Association of Professors of Missions         1954-1963           b. 7, f. 117         Hyslop, Ralph D.         1954-1963           b. 7, f. 118         I         1           b. 7, f. 119         International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)         1950-1955, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 120         International Missionary Council: China Study Project         1955-1955, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 121         International Missionary Council: China Study Project         1955-1955, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 122         J         Jones, Francis P.         1951-1975           b. 7, f. 125         J         1951-1975           b. 7, f. 126         Jones, Francis P.         1951-1976           b. 7, f. 127         K         1955-1976           b. 7, f. 128         La - Li         1955-1976           b. 7, f. 130         La - Li         1955-1976           b. 8, f. 131         La Ly         1955-1976           b. 8, f. 133         La Cy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study Mojet         1955-1	b. 7, f. 112	Haw - He	
b. 7, f. 115         Hoo - Hs           b. 7, f. 116         Hu - Hy           b. 7, f. 116         Hu - Hy           b. 7, f. 117         Harr, Wilbur C. See: Association of Professors of Missions           b. 7, f. 117         Hyslop, Ralph D.           b. 7, f. 118         I           b. 7, f. 119         International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)         1950-1955           b. 7, f. 120         International Missionary Council: China Study Project         1955-1955, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 121-124         International Missionary Council: China Study Project         1955-1956, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 125         J         1955-1956, 1967, undated         1955-1956, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 126         Jones, Francis P.         1961-1975           b. 7, f. 127         K         1955-1976, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 128         Keeny, Spurgeon M.         1955-1976, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 129         La - Li         1955-1976, 1967, undated         1955-1976, 1955-1976, 1967, undated           b. 7, f. 129         La - Li         1955-1976, 1955, 1976, 1951, 1972         1955-1976, 1955, 1972, 1953, 1930         1955-1976, 1955, 1972, 1955, 1972, 1954, 1330         1955-1975, 1955, 1956, 1957, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955, 1957, 1955	b. 7, f. 113	Hi	
b.7,f.116Hu - HyLarr, Wilbur C. See: Association of Professors of Missions1954-1963b.7,f.117Hyslop, Ralph D.1954-1963b.7,f.118I1b.7,f.119International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)1954-1955 Februaryb.7,f.120International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb.7,f.121International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb.7,f.125J1951-1976b.7,f.126Jones, Francis P.1961-1975b.7,f.127K1955-1976b.7,f.128Keeny, Spurgeon M.1955-1976b.7,f.129La - Li1955-1976b.7,f.130Lu - Ly1955-1976b.8,f.131Lu - Ly1955-1972b.8,f.133Mac (See also: China era correspondence)1955-1975b.8,f.134Ma-McG1951-1972b.8,f.135Macm - Mat1951-1972b.8,f.136Macm - Mat1951-1972	b. 7, f. 114	Ho - Hol	
Harr, Wilbur C. See: Association of Professors of Missions1954-1963b, 7, f. 117Hyslop, Ralph D.1954-1963b, 7, f. 118I1950b, 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)1950b, 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb, 7, f. 121International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb, 7, f. 121J1955-1956, 1967, undated1955-1956, 1967, undatedb, 7, f. 125J1955-1956, 1967, undated1951-1976, 1967, undatedb, 7, f. 126Jones, Francis P.1961-1975b, 7, f. 127K1955-1976, 1976b, 7, f. 128Keeny, Spurgeon M.1955-1976, 1976b, 7, f. 129La - Li1955-1976, 1976b, 7, f. 130Lo1955-1976, 1976b, 7, f. 130Lu - Ly1955-1976, 1972b, 8, f. 131La Cuy Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)1955-1972, 1951-1972b, 8, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)1951-1972, 1951-1975b, 8, f. 134Ma-McG1951-1976, 1951-1975b, 8, f. 135Macm - Mat1951-1976, 1951-1976b, 8, f. 136Macm - Mat1951-1976, 1951-1976b, 8, f. 136Macm - Mat1951-1976, 1971b, 8, f. 136Macm - Mat1951-1976, 1971b, 8, f. 136Macm - Mat1971b,	b. 7, f. 115	Hoo - Hs	
See: Association of Professors of Missions           b,7,f.171         Hyslop, Ralph D.         1954-1963           b,7,f.118         I           b,7,f.119         İnternational Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)         1950           b,7,f.120         International Missionary Council: China Study Project         1955-1955, february undated           b,7,f.120         International Missionary Council: China Study Project         1955-1956, 1967, undated           b,7,f.121         J         1951-1955, 1967, undated         1955-1956, 1967, undated           b,7,f.125         J         1951-1956, 1967, undated         1951-1956, 1967, undated           b,7,f.126         Jones, Francis P.         1961-1975           b,7,f.127         K         1955-1976, 1955-1976,           b,7,f.128         La - Li         1955-1976, 1957,           b,7,f.129         La - Li         1955-1976, 1957,           b,7,f.130         Lu - Ly         1955-1972, 1957,           b,8,f.131         La Courette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)         1955-1972, 1953,           b,8,f.134         Ma-McG         1955-1972, 1953,           b,8,f.135         Macm-Mat         1955-1972, 1953,           b,8,f.136         Macm-Mat         1955, 1976, 1951, 1951, 1951, </td <td>b. <b>7</b>, f. <b>116</b></td> <td>Hu - Hy</td> <td></td>	b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>116</b>	Hu - Hy	
b. 7, f. 118Ib. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)1950b. 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Project1954-1955 Februaryb. 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb. 7, f. 121-124International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb. 7, f. 125JIb. 7, f. 126Jones, Francis P.1961-1975b. 7, f. 127KIb. 7, f. 128Keeny, Spurgeon M.1955-1976, 1967, undatedb. 7, f. 129La - LiIb. 7, f. 130LoIb. 8, f. 131Lu - LyIb. 8, f. 132Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)1955-1972b. 8, f. 134Ma-McGIb. 8, f. 135Macm - MatIb. 8, f. 136Macm - MatI			
b. 7, f. 119International Missionary Council: General (see also: China era correspondence)1950b. 7, f. 120International Missionary Council: China Study Project1954-1955 Februaryb. 7, f. 121International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb. 7, f. 121International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb. 7, f. 125J1951-1976b. 7, f. 126Jones, Francis P.1961-1975b. 7, f. 127K1955-1976b. 7, f. 128Keeny, Spurgeon M.1955-1976b. 7, f. 130Lo1955-1976b. 7, f. 130Lo1955-1972b. 8, f. 131Lu - Ly1955-1972b. 8, f. 132Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)1955-1972b. 8, f. 133Ma-McG1935-1955b. 8, f. 134Ma-McG1935-1955b. 8, f. 135Macm - Mat1935-1955b. 8, f. 136Macm - Mat1935-1955	b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>117</b>	Hyslop, Ralph D.	1954-1963
correspondence)b.7,f.120International Missionary Council: China Study Project\$\februaryb.7,f.121-124International Missionary Council: China Study Project\$\februaryb.7,f.125J\$\summarkb.7,f.126Jones, Francis P.\$\februaryb.7,f.127K\$\summarkb.7,f.128Keeny, Spurgeon M.\$\februaryb.7,f.129La - Li\$\summarkb.7,f.130Lo\$\summarkb.8,f.131Lu - Ly\$\summarkb.8,f.132Acourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)\$\fildeta Sistify 1955b.8,f.134Mar - Mat\$\summarkb.8,f.135Macm - Mat\$\summarkb.8,f.136Macm - Mat\$\summarkb.8,	b. <b>7</b> , f. 118	I	
Februaryb. 7, f. 121-124International Missionary Council: China Study Project1955-1956, 1967, undatedb. 7, f. 125Jb. 7, f. 126Jones, Francis P.1961-1975b. 7, f. 127K1955-1976b. 7, f. 128Keny, Spurgeon M.1955-1976b. 7, f. 129La - Li1955-1976b. 7, f. 130Lo1955-1972b. 8, f. 131Lu - Ly1955-1972b. 8, f. 132Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)1955-1972b. 8, f. 133Macm-tMat G.1935-1955b. 8, f. 134Macm Mat1935-1952b. 8, f. 135Macm - Mat1935-1952	b. 7, f. 119		1950
indated         indated           b.7,f.125         J           b.7,f.126         Jones, Francis P.           b.7,f.127         K           b.7,f.128         Keeny, Spurgeon M.           b.7,f.129         La - Li           b.7,f.130         Lo           b.8,f.131         Lu - Ly           b.8,f.132         Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)         1955-1972           b.8,f.134         Macm - Mat           b.8,f.135         Macm - Mat	b. 7, f. 120	International Missionary Council: China Study Project	
b.7, f. 126 Jones, Francis P. 1961-1975 b.7, f. 127 K b.7, f. 128 Keeny, Spurgeon M. 1955-1976 b.7, f. 129 La - Li b.7, f. 130 Lo b.8, f. 131 Lu - Ly b.8, f. 132 Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study) 1955-1972 b.8, f. 133 Ma - McG b.8, f. 135 Macm - Mat b.8, f. 136 Mc	b. 7, f. 121-124	International Missionary Council: China Study Project	
b.7, f. 127         K           b.7, f. 128         Keeny, Spurgeon M.         1955-1976           b.7, f. 129         La - Li         1955-1976           b.7, f. 130         Lo         1955-1976           b.8, f. 131         Lu - Ly         1955-1972           b.8, f. 132         Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)         1955-1972           b.8, f. 133         Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)         1935-1955           b.8, f. 134         Ma - McG         1935-1955           b.8, f. 135         Macm - Mat         1935-1955	b. 7, f. 125	J	
b.7,f.128Keeny, Spurgeon M.1955-1976b.7,f.129La - Li-b.7,f.130Lo-b.8,f.131Lu - Ly-b.8,f.132Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)1955-1972b.8,f.133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)1935-1955b.8,f.134Ma - McG-b.8,f.135Macm - Mat-b.8,f.136Mc-	b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>126</b>	Jones, Francis P.	1961-1975
b. 7, f. 129 La - Li b. 7, f. 130 Lo b. 8, f. 131 Lu - Ly b. 8, f. 132 Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study) 1955-1972 b. 8, f. 133 Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence) 1935-1955 b. 8, f. 134 Ma - McG b. 8, f. 135 Macm - Mat b. 8, f. 136 Mc	b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>127</b>	к	
b. 7, f. 130Lob. 8, f. 131Lu - Lyb. 8, f. 132Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)1955-1972b. 8, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)1935-1955b. 8, f. 134Ma - McG	b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>128</b>	Keeny, Spurgeon M.	1955-1976
b. 8, f. 131Lu - Lyb. 8, f. 132Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)1955-1972b. 8, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)1935-1955b. 8, f. 134Ma - McG	b. <b>7</b> , f. <b>129</b>	La - Li	
b. 8, f. 132Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)1955-1972b. 8, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)1935-1955b. 8, f. 134Ma - McG	b. <b>7</b> , f. 130	Lo	
b. 8, f. 133Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)1935-1955b. 8, f. 134Ma - McGb. 8, f. 135Macm - Matb. 8, f. 136Mc	b. 8, f. 131	Lu - Ly	
b. 8, f. 134       Ma - McG         b. 8, f. 135       Macm - Mat         b. 8, f. 136       Mc	b. 8, f. 132	Lacy, Creighton (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study)	1955-1972
b. 8, f. 135     Macm - Mat       b. 8, f. 136     Mc	b. 8, f. 133	Latourette, Kenneth S. (see also: China era correspondence)	1935-1955
b. 8, f. 136 Mc	b. 8, f. 134	Ma - McG	
	b. 8, f. 135	Macm - Mat	
b. 8, f. 137 Mi	b. 8, f. 136	Mc	
	b. 8, f. 137	Mi	

b. 8, f. 138	Mo - My	
b. 8, f. 139	MacInnis, Donald	1967-1973
b. 8, f. 140	Maloy, Robert M. See: <u>Missionary Research Library, Union Theological Seminary, NY</u>	1974-1978, undated
b. 8, f. 141	Maryknoll Publications	
b. 8, f. 142	Merwin, Wallace C. (see also: International Missionary Council: China Study Project)	1955-1968
b. 8, f. 143	Merwin, Wallace C.	1970-1978
b. 8, f. 144-148	Missionary Research Library, Union Theological Seminary, NY	1951-1978
b. 8, f. 149	Na	
b. 8, f. 150	Ne - No	
b. 9, f. 151	National Council of Churches of Christ in the U.S.A.: Department of Education for Mission (Friendship Press)	1967-1969
b. 9, f. 152	National Council of Churches of Christ in the U.S.A.: Department of Religious Liberty	1953-1956
b. 9, f. 153	National Council of Churches of Christ in the U.S.A.: Division of Foreign Missions - Africa Committee	1955
b. 9, f. 154	National Council of Churches of Christ in the U.S.A.: Division of Foreign Missions - Africa Committee	1956-1961
	Nielson, Erik W. See: International Missionary Council: China Study Project	
b. 9, f. 155	0	
b. 9, f. 156	Ра	
b. 9, f. 157	Pe - Po	
b. 9, f. 158	Pr - Pu	
b. 9, f. 159	Ra - Rh	
b. 9, f. 160	Ri - Rom	
b. 9, f. 161	Roo - Ru	
b. 9, f. 162	Rabe, Valentin	1970-1978
	Richardson, William See: <u>Maryknoll Publications</u>	
b. 9, f. 163	Sa - Sc	
b. 9, f. 164	Se - She	
b. 9, f. 165	Shi - Si	

b. 9, f. 166	Sm	
b. 9, f. 167	So	
b. 9, f. 168	Sp - Ste	
b. 9, f. 169	Sto - Sw	
b. 9, f. 170	Sailer, Randolph C.	1977, undated
	Smith, Joseph M. See: <u>Christian Church - Disciples of Christ</u>	
b. 9, f. 171	Social Science Research Council	1959-1967
b. 9, f. 172	Ta - Th	
b. 9, f. 173	Ті - Ту	
b. 10, f. 174	Teng, S. Y.	1951-1952
b. <b>10</b> , f. <b>175</b>	Theological Education Fund	1962-1975
b. <b>10</b> , f. <b>176</b>	Thomson, James C.	1961-1968
b. <b>10</b> , f. <b>177</b>	U	
b. <b>10</b> , f. 178	Union Theological Seminary (see also: Bennett, John C. Missionary Research Library Van Dusen, Henry P. Handy, Robert Jackson, Herbert C.)	1950
b. 10, f. 179	United Board for Christian Colleges in China (see also: China era correspondence)	1951
b. 10, f. 179	United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia (see also: Fenn, William P.)	1965-1978, undated
	United Christian Missionary Society See: <u>Christian Church - Disciples of Christ</u>	
b. 10, f. 180	V	
b. 10, f. 181	Van Dusen, Henry P. (see also: China era corres.)	1952-1963
b. 10, f. 182	Wa - Wen	
b. 10, f. 183	Wes	
b. 10, f. 184	Wh - Wia	
b. 10, f. 185	Wic - Wil	
b. 10, f. 186	Wo - Wu	
b. <b>10</b> , f. <b>187</b>	World Council of Churches	1954-1965, undated
b. 10, f. 188	Y	

b. 10, f. 189	Yale Divinity School Library (see also: American Theological Library Association, China Records Project)	1970-1974
b. 10, f. 190	Zia, N. Z.	1952-1977, undated
b. 10, f. 191	First names and anonymous	
b. 10, f. 192	Fragments	

# Series II: China notes and sources, 1836-1978, undated

The notes and sources of Series II are organized in eight categories:

A. Material arranged by outline number (according to outline devised by Bates).

B. Material arranged by author or editor of source monographs, essays and theses. A select list of titles follows the list of authors and editors in this register; a complete list of titles is available in the first folder of this section.

C. Periodical articles, arranged by author.

D. Notes, photocopies, and summaries from periodicals, arranged alphabetically by title of the periodical and chronologically within each title.

E. Miscellaneous notes and references on 3" x 5" cards or sheets of paper.

F. Miscellaneous notes and references on  $5 \frac{1}{2''} \times 8 \frac{1}{2''}$  sheets of paper.

G. Mixed format notes and sources related to: organizations, conferences, topics.

H. Chinese language sources.

A. By Outline Number

I. 1890-1906

b. 11, f. 193	1. Society and State: General
b. 11, f. 194	1. Society and State: Education
b. 11, f. 195	1. Society and State: Footbinding, polygamy, infanticide
b. 11, f. 196	1. Society and State: Opium
b. 11, f. 197-198	2. Government and legal relations
b. 11, f. 199-201	3. Clashing of cultures: General
b. 11, f. 202	2. and 3. (folder labeled "Treaties")
b. 12, f. 203	3., 4., and 5. (Anti-missionary violence)
b. 12, f. 204	4. Reform and reformers - crisis of imperialist encroachment: (folder labeled "Encroachment")
b. 12, f. 205-210	4. Reform and reformers - crisis of imperialist encroachment: Boxer crisis
b. 12, f. 211-212	4. Reform and reformers - crisis of imperialist encroachment: General
b. 13, f. 213	1. Broad introductory overview
b. 13, f. 214	2., 3. Missions and churches
b. 13, f. 215	4. Major aims, policies, adaptation
b. 13, f. 216-217	5. Christian thought: concern with Chinese religions
b. 13, f. 218	6. Methods and programs (special groups)
b. 13, f. 219	7. Evangelization, growth
b. 13, f. 220	8. Religious education, training of workers
b. 13, f. 221	9. Education: schools and colleges

## A. By Outline Number > I. 1890-1906 (continued)

b. <b>13</b> , f. <b>222</b>	10. Service: medical, social, YMCA and YWCA: General including famine relief
b. 13, f. 223-224	10. Service: medical, social, YMCA and YWCA: Medical
b. 14, f. 225-227	11. Bible, Christian literature
b. 14, f. 228	12. The Chinese Christian community
b. 14, f. 229	13. Missionaries: select aspects of life
b. 14, f. 230	General
II. 190	07-1922
b. 14, f. 231	1. Society, government, law
b. 14, f. 232	2. Currents of thought, education
b. 14, f. 233	3. Religion
b. 14, f. 234	1. Broad view, cooperation, union
b. 14, f. 235	2. The churches and their selfhood
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>236</b>	3. Missions as working bodies
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>237</b>	4. Aims, policies, adaptation, socio-ethical concerns
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>238</b>	5. Theology and Christian thought
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>239</b>	6. Programs, methods, special groups
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>240</b>	7. Evangelism and revivals
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>241</b>	8. Religious education and training of workers
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>242</b>	9. Education: Christian schools, colleges, universities
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>244</b>	10. Service: Medical
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>245</b>	10. Service: China Medical Board, PUMC, Rockefeller Foundation
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>246</b>	10. Service: Nursing
b. <b>15</b> , f. 247	10. Service: Social Services
b. <b>15</b> , f. 248	10. Service: YMCA and YWCA
b. <b>15</b> , f. <b>249</b>	11. Christian literature and Bible
b. <b>15</b> , f. 250	12. Chinese Christian community
b. 15, f. 251	13. External relations; missionaries, home base
III. 19	22-1937
b. 16, f. 252-253	1. Society, government, law
b. 16, f. 254	2. Currents of thought, education

## A. By Outline Number > III. 1922-1937 (continued)

b. 16, f. 255	3. Religions
b. 16, f. 256	1. Broad view, cooperation, union
b. 16, f. 257	2. Churches, their development, self-reliance
b. 16, f. 258	3. Missions as working bodies
b. 16, f. 259	4. Aims, policies, communication, adaptation
b. 16, f. 260	5. Theology and Christian thought, Chinese religions
b. 16, f. 261	6. Programs, methods, special groups
b. 16, f. 262	7. Evangelism and revivals
b. 16, f. 263	8. Religious education, Sunday Schools, training of workers
b. 17, f. 264	9. Education: General
b. 17, f. 265	9. Education: Primary, normal, kindergarten
b. <b>17</b> , f. <b>266</b>	9. Education: Middle Schools
b. 17, f. 267	9. Education: Colleges
b. <b>17</b> , f. 268	9. Education: Government relationships
b. 17, f. 269	9. Education: General governement education
b. 17, f. 270	9. Education: Adult, special, vocational
b. 17, f. 271	9. Education: Women and girls
b. 17, f. 272	9. Education: Associations
b. 17, f. 273-274	10. Service: Medical
b. 17, f. 275	10. Service: China Medical Board, PUMC, Rockefeller Foundation
b. <b>17</b> , f. <b>276</b>	10. Service: Nursing
b. 17, f. 277	10. Service: Rural Work
b. 18, f. 278	10. Service: Rural work - Megginson thesis
b. 18, f. 279	10. Service: Rural work - Price book
b. 18, f. 280	10. Service: YMCA, student work
b. 18, f. 281	10. Service: YWCA
b. 18, f. 282	11. Christian literature and Bible
b. 18, f. 283	12. Chinese Christian community
b. 18, f. 284	13. External relations; missionaries, home base
b. 18, f. 285	14. Roman Catholic missions

#### A. By Outline Number (continued)

	IV. 1937-1950	
b. 18, f. 286	2. Churches, their development, self-reliance	
b. 18, f. 287	10. Service; medical, social, rural, YMCA, YWCA	
B. By	y Author or Editor of Source	
b. 19, f. 288	Abend, Ady, Allan: including Ady, M. S., "The South China Mission (Presbyterian U.S.A.), An Inquiry"	1940
b. 19, f. 289	Anderson, M. R.	
b. 19, f. 290	Anderson, R. K., "Venture of Faith: The Story of the Canadian Mission in Manchuria"	undated
b. 19, f. 291	Armerding, Athenoux, Ayers: including Armerding, Hudson T., "The China Inland Mission and Some Aspects of Its Work; Pre-1948" (Ph.D. Thesis)	1948
b. <b>19</b> , f. <b>292</b>	Bacon, Baller, Balme	
b. 19, f. 293	Band	
b. 19, f. 294	Barber, Barbour, Barnett: including Barnett, Eugene E., "As I Look Back"	undated
b. 19, f. 295	Bau, Beach, Beaton: including Bau, Mingchien J.,"The Foreign Relations of China: A History and a Survey" and Beaton, Kenneth J.," West of the Gorges"	1921, 1948
b. 19, f. 296	Beaver, Beck, Belpaire: including Beck, Karl H., "Communist Impact on the Church"	undated
b. 19, f. 297	Bentley, Bitton, Blakeslee	
b. 19, f. 298	Bliss, Bodde: including typescript biography of Dr. Edward Bliss and Bodde, Derk, "The New Ideology in the Old China"	1951, undated
b. 19, f. 299	Bohr	
b. 19, f. 300	Boorman, Borst-Smith, Boyd: including Boorman, Howard L., "China: Yesterday and Tomorrow " and Boyd, H. A., "Conflicting Claims in China"	1968, undated
b. 19, f. 301	Boynton, Charles L., "Protestant Missionaries to China" (Lists)	undated
b. 20, f. 302	Bradshaw, Breslin, Brewster: including Bradshaw, N. E. Eloise, "China Log" (Memoir) and Breslin, Thomas A., "Corporatist Vision and Liberal Tactics: The American Catholic Missionaries in China, 1918-1941"	undated
b. 20, f. 303	Brooks, Rachel, "The YMCA Government of China"	undated
b. 20, f. 304	Broomhall	
b. 20, f. 305	Broughton, Brown, A. J., Brown, F.	
b. 20, f. 306	Brown, Margaret H., "History of the Honan (North China) Mission of the United Church of Canada"	undated
b. 20, f. 306	Brown, Margaret H., "MacGillivary of Shanghai"	1968

b. 20, f. 307	Bruce, Buck, J. L.: including Buck, John L., "Some Basic Agricultural Problems of China"	1947
b. 20, f. 308	Buck, P. Burgess, Burkholder: including Burkholder, Lawrence J., "Rethinking Christian Life and Mission in Light of the Chinese Experience"	1977
b. 20, f. 309	Burton	
b. 20, f. 310	Cadbury, Capen	
b. 20, f. 311	Lutz	
b. 20, f. 312	Carlberg	
b. 20, f. 313	Carson	
b. 21, f. 314	Casselman, Arthur V., "It Happened in Hunan: A Narrative of a China Mission"	1951
b. 21, f. 315	Caterer, Chamberlin, Chan, W.: including Chamberlin, Wilbur J., "Ordered to China"	1903
b. 21, f. 316	Chan, F. Gilbert, "Liao Chung-K'ai and the Labor Movement in Kwangtung, 1924-1925"	1975
b. 21, f. 316	Chandler, Robert E., "Sketch of Chang Heng-Ch'iu of the North China Kung Li Hui"	undated
b. 21, f. 317	Chang: including Chang, Fu Siang," Rural Reconstruction in Under-Developed Areas and the Contributions of the Christian Movement" (Thesis)	undated
b. 21, f. 318	Chao, Jonathan, "Christian Community Life in a Chinese Village	1974
b. 21, f. 318	Chao, Jonathan Some Ideas on the Direction of Chinese Theological Development"	undated
b. 21, f. 318	Chapman, H. Owen, "The Second Reformation"	1968
b. 21, f. 318	Chen, Chi-yun, "Liang Chi'-Ch'ao's 'Missionary Education': A Case Study of Missionary Influence on the Reformers"	undated
b. 21, f. 319	Chen, Ellen Marie, "The Unitive Way - Taoism - Ch'an and Christianity"	1977
b. 21, f. 319	Chen, Theodore H. E., "People's Republic of China"	1949-1968
b. 21, f. 319	Cheng, C. Y.," Some Problems: Confronting the Christian Movement in China"	1927
b. 21, f. 320	Chesnaux, Chiang, M., Chiang, K.	
b. 21, f. 321	Ching, Christy: including Ching, Julia, "The Problem of God in Confucianism"	undated
b. 21, f. 322,323	Chu, Finley M., "China's Old Culture and New Order" (Ph.D. Thesis)	1955
b. 21, f. 324	Chu	
b. 21, f. 325	Clark, Close, Clubb	
b. 21, f. 326	Cohen, Condit, Cooper: including Cooper, Luther G.,"Confucianism in Modern China" (S.T.M. Thesis)	1937

b. 22, f. 327	Copland	
b. 22, f. 329	Corbett, C. H., Cordier	
b. 22, f. 330	Cormack, J. G., "The Early Days of Western Medicine in Peking"	1924
b. 22, f. 331	Cornaby, Costantini, Couturier	
b. 22, f. 332	Craighill, Cressy, E. H., Cressy	
b. 22, f. 333	Croizier, Crouch, Curti: including Crouch, Archie R., "The Church in Taiwan: A Declaration of Self-Determination"	undated
b. 22, f. 334	Dachlin, I., Davis, DeBary: including DeBary, William T., "Spiritual Cultivation and Intellectual Enlightenment in Neo-Confucian Thought"	undated
b. 22, f. 335	DeFrancis, DeGroot, DeGruche	
b. 23, f. 336	DeKorne, DeMailla	
b. 23, f. 337	Deming	
b. 23, f. 338	Dennis, Desmit, Dewey	
b. 23, f. 339	Dieux, Dirlik, Dufay	
b. 23, f. 340	Eastman, Eberhard, Edwards, E. H.	
b. 23, f. 341	Edwards, D. W.	
b. 23, f. 342	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"	1931
		1931 undated
b. 23, f. 342	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China" Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the	
b. 23, f. 342 b. 23, f. 343	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural	undated
b. 23, f. 342 b. 23, f. 343 b. 23, f. 344	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"	undated
b. 23, f. 342 b. 23, f. 343 b. 23, f. 344 b. 23, f. 345	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"Fenn, Ferguson	undated
<ul> <li>b. 23, f. 342</li> <li>b. 23, f. 343</li> <li>b. 23, f. 344</li> <li>b. 23, f. 345</li> <li>b. 23, f. 346</li> </ul>	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"Fenn, FergusonFisher, A. J.	undated
<ul> <li>b. 23, f. 342</li> <li>b. 23, f. 343</li> <li>b. 23, f. 344</li> <li>b. 23, f. 345</li> <li>b. 23, f. 346</li> <li>b. 23, f. 347</li> </ul>	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"         Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"         Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"         Fenn, Ferguson         Fisher, A. J.         Fisher, G. M.	undated
<ul> <li>b. 23, f. 342</li> <li>b. 23, f. 343</li> <li>b. 23, f. 344</li> <li>b. 23, f. 345</li> <li>b. 23, f. 346</li> <li>b. 23, f. 347</li> <li>b. 24, f. 348</li> </ul>	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"Fenn, FergusonFisher, A. J.Fisher, G. M.Fitch	undated
b. 23, f. 342 b. 23, f. 343 b. 23, f. 344 b. 23, f. 345 b. 23, f. 345 b. 23, f. 346 b. 23, f. 347 b. 24, f. 348 b. 24, f. 349	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"Fenn, FergusonFisher, A. J.Fisher, G. M.FitchFord, E. L., Ford, H., Forsythe	undated
b. 23, f. 342 b. 23, f. 343 b. 23, f. 344 b. 23, f. 345 b. 23, f. 345 b. 23, f. 346 b. 23, f. 347 b. 24, f. 348 b. 24, f. 349 b. 24, f. 350	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"Fenn, FergusonFisher, A. J.Fisher, G. M.FitchFord, E. L., Ford, H., ForsytheFosdick, Foster, FrenchFried, Frillman: including Fried, Morton H., "Anthropology and Sociology in	undated
b. 23, f. 342 b. 23, f. 343 b. 23, f. 344 b. 23, f. 345 b. 23, f. 345 b. 23, f. 346 b. 23, f. 347 b. 24, f. 348 b. 24, f. 349 b. 24, f. 350 b. 24, f. 351	Faber: Incl. Faber, Knud, "Report on Medical Schools in China"Fairbank, Jonn K., "The Many Faces of Protestant Missions in China and the United States"Fairbank, Fearn, Fehl: including Fairbank, Wilma, "Report from the Cultural Attache"Fenn, FergusonFisher, A. J.Fisher, G. M.FitchFord, E. L., Ford, H., ForsytheFosdick, Foster, FrenchFried, Frillman: including Fried, Morton H., "Anthropology and Sociology in China"	undated

B. By Author or Editor of Source (continue	ed)
--	-----

b. 25, f. 356Gibson, Giedt, Gleason: including Giedt, E. H., "What Did Communism and the Communist State Bring to the Chinese Christian Community as Opportunities and Challenges, Fundamental Issues and Beliefs, Concrete Problems and Demands?"b. 25, f. 357Glover, Glover, Kane, Goforthb. 25, f. 358Coldman, Qeork, Glover, Glover	b. 24, f. 355	Geng, George Yuen-Hsioh, "The Promotion of the Economic Welfare of the Chinese People through the Protestant Churches in China" (Ph.D. Thesis)	1951
b. 25, f. 358Goldman, Goodrich: including Goldman, Merle, "China's Anti-Confucian Campaign"1973-1974, undatedb. 25, f. 359Goodsell	b. 25, f. 356	and the Communist State Bring to the Chinese Christian Community as Opportunities and Challenges, Fundamental Issues and Beliefs, Concrete	circa 1956
Campaign"undatedb. 25, f. 359Goodsellb. 25, f. 360Goyan, Grabhillb. 25, f. 361Gregg, Gross-Aschoffb. 25, f. 362Haglund, Hallencrentz, Han: including Han, Yu Shan, "Christian Worship in China"1926b. 25, f. 363Harris, Hart, Hay: including Harris, Willie P., "History of Nursing in China"1953b. 25, f. 364Hayward, Hedley, Heeren1953b. 25, f. 365Hewlett, Hinckley1953b. 25, f. 366Hipps1953b. 25, f. 367Ho and Tang1953b. 26, f. 368Hoang, Hockin, Hodous1971b. 26, f. 370Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E, Hsu, P. C.1972b. 26, f. 371Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth1937b. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"1937b. 26, f. 373Hunter, Huntington, Husemann1972b. 26, f. 374Hunter, Huntington, Husemann1972b. 26, f. 375Hyatl, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"1972b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christian Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Strael, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimateundatedb. 26, f. 376JenSurden, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimateundatedb. 26, f. 376JenSurden, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimateundatedb. 26, f. 376JenSurden, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimateundated <tr< td=""><td>b. 25, f. 357</td><td>Glover, Glover-Kane, Goforth</td><td></td></tr<>	b. 25, f. 357	Glover, Glover-Kane, Goforth	
b. 25, f. 360 Goyan, Grabhill b. 25, f. 361 Gregg, Gross-Aschhoff b. 25, f. 362 Haglund, Hallencrentz, Han: including Han, Yu Shan, "Christian Worship in 1926 China" (M.A. Thesis) b. 25, f. 363 Harris, Hart, Hay: including Harris, Willie P, "History of Nursing in China" (M.A. Thesis) b. 25, f. 364 Hayward, Hedley, Heeren b. 25, f. 365 Hewlett, Hinckley b. 25, f. 366 Hipps b. 25, f. 366 Hipps b. 25, f. 367 Ho and Tang b. 26, f. 368 Hoang, Hockin, Hodous b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E, Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E, Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 371 Hur, CT, Hu, S, Hudspeth b. 26, f. 372 Hughes b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H, "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 374 Hunter, Huntington, Husemann b. 26, f. 375 Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story" 1972 b. 26, f. 376 Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem" undated b. 26, f. 376 Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate undated b. 26, f. 377 Jen	b. 25, f. 358		,
b. 25, f. 361Gregg, Gross-Aschhoffb. 25, f. 362Haglund, Hallencrentz, Han: including Han, Yu Shan, "Christian Worship in (China"1926b. 25, f. 363Harris, Hart, Hay: including Harris, Willie P, "History of Nursing in China" (M.A. Thesis)1953b. 25, f. 364Hayward, Hedley, Heeren1953b. 25, f. 365Hewlett, Hinckley1953b. 25, f. 366Hipps1953b. 25, f. 367Ho and Tang1953b. 26, f. 368Hoang, Hockin, Hodous1953b. 26, f. 370Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E, Hsu, P. C.1953b. 26, f. 371Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth1953b. 26, f. 372Hughes1953b. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H, "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"1937b. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"1972b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimateundated	b. 25, f. 359	Goodsell	
b. 25, f. 362 Hagund, Hallencrentz, Han: including Han, Yu Shan, "Christian Worship in 1926 China" (M.A. Thesis) 1953 b. 25, f. 363 Harris, Hart, Hay: including Harris, Willie P, "History of Nursing in China" (M.A. Thesis) b. 25, f. 364 Hayward, Hedley, Heeren b. 25, f. 365 Hewlett, Hinckley b. 25, f. 366 Hipps b. 25, f. 366 Hipps b. 26, f. 367 Ho and Tang b. 26, f. 368 Hoang, Hockin, Hodous b. 26, f. 369 Hoh, Holden b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E, Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 371 Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth b. 26, f. 372 Hughes b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H, "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 374 Hunter, Huntington, Husemann b. 26, f. 375 Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story" 1972 b. 26, f. 376 Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem" undated b. 26, f. 376 Jene	b. 25, f. 360	Goyan, Grabhill	
China"1953b. 25, f. 363Harris, Hart, Hay: including Harris, Willie P, "History of Nursing in China" (M.A. Thesis)1953b. 25, f. 364Hayward, Hedley, Heerenb. 25, f. 365Hewlett, Hinckleyb. 25, f. 366Hippsb. 25, f. 367Ho and Tangb. 26, f. 368Hoang, Hockin, Hodousb. 26, f. 369Hoh, Holdenb. 26, f. 370Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E, Hsu, P. C.b. 26, f. 371Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspethb. 26, f. 372Hughesb. 26, f. 374Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"1937b. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"1972b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undated	b. 25, f. 361	Gregg, Gross-Aschhoff	
China" (M.A. Thesis)b. 25, f. 364Hayward, Hedley, Heerenb. 25, f. 365Hewlett, Hinckleyb. 25, f. 366Hippsb. 25, f. 366Hippsb. 25, f. 367Ho and Tangb. 26, f. 368Hoang, Hockin, Hodousb. 26, f. 369Hoh, Holdenb. 26, f. 370Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C.b. 26, f. 371Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspethb. 26, f. 372Hughesb. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"b. 26, f. 374Hunter, Huntington, Husemannb. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undated	b. 25, f. 362		1926
b. 25, f. 365 Hewlett, Hinckley b. 25, f. 366 Hipps b. 25, f. 367 Ho and Tang b. 26, f. 368 Hoang, Hockin, Hodous b. 26, f. 368 Hoang, Hockin, Hodous b. 26, f. 370 Hohy Holden b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 371 Hu, C. T., Hu, S., Hudspeth b. 26, f. 372 Hughes b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 375 Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story" 1972 b. 26, f. 376 Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem" undated b. 26, f. 376 Jene	b. 25, f. 363		1953
b. 25, f. 366 Hipps b. 25, f. 367 Ho and Tang b. 26, f. 368 Hoang, Hockin, Hodous b. 26, f. 369 Hoh, Holden b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 371 Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth b. 26, f. 372 Hughes b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 374 Hunter, Huntington, Husemann b. 26, f. 375 Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story" 1972 b. 26, f. 376 Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem" undated b. 26, f. 376 Jen Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate undated	b. 25, f. 364	Hayward, Hedley, Heeren	
b. 25, f. 367 Ho and Tang b. 26, f. 368 Hoang, Hockin, Hodous b. 26, f. 369 Hoh, Holden b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 371 Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth b. 26, f. 372 Hughes b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 374 Hunter, Huntington, Husemann b. 26, f. 375 Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story" 1972 b. 26, f. 376 lisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem" undated b. 26, f. 376 Jane Jane State Christians Look at China Problem undated	b. 25, f. 365	Hewlett, Hinckley	
b. 26, f. 368Hoang, Hockin, Hodousb. 26, f. 369Hoh, Holdenb. 26, f. 370Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C.b. 26, f. 371Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspethb. 26, f. 372Hughesb. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"b. 26, f. 374Hunter, Huntington, Husemannb. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimateundated	b. 25, f. 366	Hipps	
b. 26, f. 369Hoh, Holdenb. 26, f. 370Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E, Hsu, P. C.b. 26, f. 371Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspethb. 26, f. 372Hughesb. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"b. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"b. 26, f. 374Hunter, Huntington, Husemannb. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undated	b. 25, f. 367	Ho and Tang	
b. 26, f. 370 Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C. b. 26, f. 371 Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth b. 26, f. 372 Hughes b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 374 Hunter, Huntington, Husemann b. 26, f. 375 Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story" 1972 b. 26, f. 376 Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem" undated b. 26, f. 376 Jen	b. 26, f. 368	Hoang, Hockin, Hodous	
b. 26, f. 371 Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth b. 26, f. 372 Hughes b. 26, f. 373 Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" 1937 b. 26, f. 374 Hunter, Huntington, Husemann b. 26, f. 375 Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story" 1972 b. 26, f. 376 Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem" undated b. 26, f. 376 Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate undated b. 26, f. 377 Jen	b. 26, f. 369	Hoh, Holden	
b. 26, f. 372Hughesb. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"1937b. 26, f. 374Hunter, Huntington, Husemann1972b. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"1972b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimateundatedb. 26, f. 377JenJen	b. 26, f. 370	Houghton, Hsiao, Hsu, E., Hsu, P. C.	
b. 26, f. 373Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government"1937b. 26, f. 374Hunter, Huntington, Husemann1952b. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"1972b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undatedb. 26, f. 377JenJen	b. 26, f. 371	Hu, C.T., Hu, S., Hudspeth	
b. 26, f. 374Hunter, Huntington, Husemannb. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"1972b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undatedb. 26, f. 377Jen	b. 26, f. 372	Hughes	
b. 26, f. 375Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"1972b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undatedb. 26, f. 377Jen	b. 26, f. 373	Hume, Edward H., "Christian Medical Work and the Chinese Government" $% \mathcal{L}^{(n)}(\mathcal{L})$	1937
b. 26, f. 376Iisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"undatedb. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undatedb. 26, f. 377Jen	b. 26, f. 374	Hunter, Huntington, Husemann	
b. 26, f. 376Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"undatedb. 26, f. 377Jen	b. 26, f. 375	Hyatt, Irwin, "Lessons of Missionary Experience: The Lottie Moon Story"	1972
Value" b. 26, f. 377 Jen	b. <b>26</b> , f. <b>376</b>	lisaka, Yoshiaki, "Japanese Christians Look at China Problem"	undated
		, , , ,	
b. 26, f. 378 Jenkins	b. 26, f. 376	Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate	undated
		Israel, John, "Southwest Associated University: Survival as an Ultimate Value"	undated

b. 27, f. 379	Johnson, E. H., Johnson, Rita, Johnston: including Johnson, Rita, "Continuity and Change: Mission Attitudes Toward China"	1972
b. 27, f. 380	Jolliffee, Jomin, Jones: including Jones, F. C., "Manchuria in 1945-1946"	1947
b. 27, f. 381	Kane, J. Herbert	
b. 27, f. 382	Kane, J. Herbert, Kernahan, Keyte	
b. 27, f. 383	Kiao-ou Ki-Lio	
b. 27, f. 384	Kiang Wen Han, "Chinese Students and Religion - A Symposium"	1936
b. 27, f. 384	Kiang Wen Han, "The Student Situation in China"	1932
b. 27, f. 384	Kiang Wen Han, "Christianity and Marx-Leninism"	1950
b. 27, f. 384	Kilborn, O. L., Kilborn, Leslie G., "Our Last Term in China: 1949-1952"	1952
b. 27, f. 385	Kinnear, Koo, Krang	
b. 27, f. 386	Ku, H. M., Ku, T. J., Kuhn: including Ku, Tun-Jou, "Notes on the Chinese Version of the Bible"	undated
b. 27, f. 387	Lacy, W. N., Lacy, Creighton, "Christian Missions Confront Communism, 1921-1948"	circa 1955
b. 27, f. 388	Lamberton	
b. 27, f. 389	Lamson, Lane, Lang	
b. 27, f. 390	Lary, Lathan	
b. 27, f. 390	Latourette, Kenneth S., "The History of Early Relations Between the United States and China, 1784-1844" (Ph.D. Thesis)	undated
b. 27, f. 391	Lattimore, Lautenschlager	
b. 27, f. 392	Lefeuvre	
b. 28, f. 393	Lesourd, Levenson	
b. 28, f. 393	Leung, S. C., "An Evaluation of the Christian Universities in China"	1958
b. 28, f. 394	Lewis, Charlton M., "The Opening of Hunan" (Ph.D. Thesis)	1965
b. 28, f. 394	Leyssen, Li	
b. 28, f. 395	Liang	
b. 28, f. 396	Lin, Ching-Jin, "Report of Work at Fukien Christian University, 1934-1935"	1935
b. 28, f. 396	Little	
b. 28, f. 397	Lutz, Jessie G., "China's Response to Western Education: The Role of the Christian Colleges"	circa 1968
b. 28, f. 398	Lyall, Lyon	
b. 28, f. 399	McDonald	

b. 28, f. 400, 401	MacGillivary, D., "A Century of Protestant Missions in China, 1807-1907"	1907
b. 29, f. 402	MacInnis, Donald, "The China Struggle and Christian Missions"	1967
b. 29, f. 402	McIntosh	
b. 29, f. 403	Maclagan	
b. 29, f. 404	MacNair, H. F., "Critical Moments in the History of Christianity in China"	1925
b. <b>29</b> , f. <b>405</b>	Martin, Masland, Masson: Incl. Masland, John W., "Communism and Christianity in China"	1951
b. <b>29</b> , f. <b>406</b>	Matthews, B.; Matthews, Harold S., "Lessons To Be Learned from the Experiences of Christian Missions in China (NCCC)"	1951
b. 29, f. 407, 408	Megginson, William J.,"The Rural Work of American Protestant Missionaries in China, 1911-1937" (B.A. Thesis and Bates' notes)	
b. 29, f. 409	Melby	
b. 29, f. 410-411b. 30, f. 412	Merwin, Wallace C., "Adventure in Unity; The Church of Christ in China "	ca. 1972
b. 30, f. 413	Meskill, Miao, Miao and Price: including Miao, Chester, "How Did the American Imperialists Destroy the Three-Self Reform Movement through National Christian Council"	1951
b. 30, f. 414	Michie, Millard, Miller	
b. 30, f. 415	Mills, Milne, Moffett: Incl. Moffett, Anna E. The Nanking Tragedy - A Personal Statement	1927
b. 30, f. 416	Monsen, Monsterleet, Moreau and Masson	
b. 30, f. 417	Morse, H. B., Morse and MacNair, Morton	
b. 30, f. 418	Munro	
b. 30, f. 419	Nahn, Nairne, Najarian	
b. 30, f. 420	Norris, Noyes	
b. 30, f. 421	Ogilvie, O'Neill, Oosthuicen, Oosthuizen	
b. 30, f. 422	Park, Patterson	
b. 30, f. 424	Pelissier, Perry: Incl. Perry, Elizabeth J., "Peasant Violence in Huai-Pei: An Ecological Approach to Rebellion and Revolution"	1978
b. 30, f. 424	Pillai, Joachim, "Maoist Ethics and Judaeo-Christian Traditions"	1974
b. <b>31</b> , f. <b>425</b>	Piolet, Planchet, Porter	
b. <b>31</b> , f. <b>426</b>	Poteat, Powell	
b. <b>31</b> , f. <b>427</b>	Pratt, J. B., Pratt, J. T.	
b. 31, f. 428	Price, Frank W., "The Church in China Today"	undated

b. 31, f. 428	Price, Frank W. History of Nanking Theological Seminary, 1911-1961	1961
b. 31, f. 429	Purcell, Pye	
b. 31, f. 430	Quigley	
b. 31, f. 431	Rabe, Valentin H. The American Protestant Foreign Missionary Movement, 1880-1920 (Ph.D. Thesis)	1964
b. 31, f. 431	Rattenbury, Rawlinson	
b. <b>31</b> , f. <b>432</b>	Read, Katherine L., "Bernard Emms Read: Scientist - World Traveler Humanitarian; An Account of One Life in China, 1909-1949"	undated
b. 31, f. 432	Rees, Reid	
b. 31, f. 433	Reinsch, Reisner, Reynolds	
b. 31, f. 434	Richard, Richardson, Richter	
b. 31, f. 435	Robertson, Robson, Ross	
b. 31, f. 436	Rowlands, Rowley	
b. <b>31</b> , f. <b>436</b>	Rubinstein, Murray A., "Perishing Heathens and Parochial Preachers: 19th Century American Missionary Perceptions of the Chinese Religious Tradition"	undated
b. 31, f. 437	Sailer, Randolph C. Robert B. Fulton, "Suggestions for Working to Understand China and America Better"	1977
b. 31, f. 437	Sallee, Schlunk	
b. 32, f. 438	Scheider, Shrecker	
b. 32, f. 438	Schulman, Irwin J., "The Emergence of the Boxers "	1974
b. 32, f. 439	Schultheis	
b. 32, f. 439	Schwarcz, Vera, "May Fourth as Allegory: Intellectuals and the Historiography of Remembrance"	1978
b. 32, f. 439	Schwartz	
b. 32, f. 440	Scott, Selden, Semedo	
b. 32, f. 441	Shao and Palmer, Sih, Simpson	
b. 32, f. 442	Smith, J. M.	
b. 32, f. 443	Smith, S. P.	
b. 32, f. 444	Smith, W.E.	
b. 32, f. 445	Skinner, Smythe	
b. 32, f. 446	Smythe, Lewis S. C., "Changes in the Christian Message for China by Protestant Missionaries"	1928

b. 32, f. 447	Solomon, Song, Soothill	
b. 32, f. 448	Sovik, A., "Church and State in Republican China" (Ph.D. Thesis)	1952
b. 32, f. 449	Sovik, E.	
b. 32, f. 450	Speer	
b. 32, f. 451	Spence, Stuart	
b. 33, f. 452	Studley, Ellen M., "Winning Chinese Youth to Christ" (B.D. Thesis)	1956
b. 33, f. 453	Suekane, Swenson	
b. 33, f. 453	Sydenstricker, Absalom, "Our Life and Work in China"	1923
b. 33, f. 454	Syrdal, Rolf A., "American Lutheran Mission in China" (Ph.D. Thesis)	1942
b. 33, f. 455	T'ang, C., T'ang, L., Tatchell	
b. 33, f. 456	Tatford, Tatlow, Taylor, H. B.	
b. 33, f. 457	Taylor, Mrs. H.	
b. 33, f. 458	Taylor, Joseph, "West of the Yang-tze Gorges"	1936
b. 33, f. 459	Tcheng, Teele	
b. 33, f. 459	Teng, S. Y., "Christian Assumptions in Occidental Histories of China"	1951
b. 33, f. 460	Teng and Fairbank, Thompson, L. G.	
b. 33, f. 461	Thompson, P., Thompson, R. W.	
b. 34, f. 462	Thomson, J. C.	
b. 34, f. 462	Thomson, J. O. , "Cycle of Cathay"	undated
b. 34, f. 462	Thornbery	
b. 34, f. 463	Tsang	
b. 34, f. 464	Tsu, Tyau	
b. 34, f. 465	Van Dusen, Van Oost	
b. 34, f. 466	Varg, Paul A., "Missionaries and China's Nationalistic Revolution"	1971
b. 34, f. 467	Vincent	
b. 34, f. 467	Virginia Therese, "Timothy Richard's Theory of Christian Missions to the Non-Christian World" (Thesis)	1966
b. 34, f. 467	Vogel, Ezra F., "The Unlikely Hero: The Social Role of the May 4th Writers" $$	undated
b. 34, f. 468	Vohra	
b. 34, f. 469	Wakefield, Walker, Wallace, L. E.	
b. 34, f. 470	Wallace, E. W., Walmesley	

b. 34, f. 471	Walmesley, L. C.	
b. 34, f. 472	Walter, Wang, C. H., Wang, M. T.	
b. 34, f. 473	Wang, Warneck, Warren	
b. 34, f. 474	Weber, H. R., Weber, M.	
b. 34, f. 474	Wei, Francis Cho-Min, "Rooting the Christian Church in Chinese Soil"	1945
b. 34, f. 475	Welch, Wen	
b. 34, f. 475	White, Garnett L. Southern Baptist Missions in China, 1945-1951 (M.A. Thesis)	1967
b. 34, f. 476	Whitehead, Raymond L., "Liturgical Developments in China's Revolutionary Religion"	1969
b. 34, f. 476	Whitehead, Raymond L., "Protestant Church in China, 1957-1967"	circa 1967
b. 34, f. 476	Whitehead and Chang	
b. 34, f. 477	Wieger	
b. 35, f. 478	Williams, B. W.	
b. 35, f. 478	Williams, M. O., "Notes on the Rediscovery of Young J. Allen, China Missionary, 1860-1907"	1977
b. 35, f. 479, 480	Williamson, H. R.	
b. 35, f. 481	Witschi, Wittfogel	
b. 35, f. 482	Wong	
b. 35, f. 483	Wood, H. G., Woodbridge	
b. 35, f. 483	Woodhead, H. G. W., "Extraterritoriality in China: The Case Against Abolition"	1929
b. 35, f. 484	Workman, George B., "The Chinese Mind and the Missionary Approach" (S.T.M. Thesis)	1939
b. 35, f. 485	Wu, C. Y., Wu, J. C. H.	
b. 35, f. 485	Wu, Y. T. The Remaking of Christianity	undated
b. 35, f. 486	Yang, C. K.	
b. 35, f. 487	Yang, Philip, "Christian Home and Family Life of the Family of Jesus in China"	1958
b. 35, f. 487	Yang, Y. C.	
b. 36, f. 488	Yip, Ka-che, "The Anti-Christian Movement in China, 1922-1927" (Ph.D. Thesis)	1969
b. 36, f. 488 b. 36, f. 489		1969 undated

b. 36, f. 491-494UnidentifiedC.By Author (Periodical Articles)1928b. 37, f. 495Chao, TC., "Christianity and Confucianism," <i>International Review of Missions</i> 1928b. 37, f. 495Chao, TC., "Christianity and Confucianism," <i>International Review of Missions</i> 1928b. 37, f. 495Chen, Theodore Hsi-en, "Education and Indoctrination in Red China," <i>Current History</i> 1961 Septemberb. 37, f. 495	b. 36, f. 490	Yui, David Z. T., "Christianity and Politics"	1926
b. 37, f. 495Chao, TC., "Christianity and Confucianism," International Review of Missions1928b. 37, f. 495Chen, Theodore Hsi-en, "Education and Indoctrination in Red China," Current Problems of Communism1966 November- Decemberb. 37, f. 495	b. 36, f. 491-494	Unidentified	
Missionsb. 37, f. 495Chen, Theodore Hsi-en, "Education and Indoctrination in Red China," Current 1961 September Historyb. 37, f. 495''' Nation in Agony: The Cultural Revolution in Communist China," Problems of Communism1966 November Decemberb. 37, f. 495'_''' Nation in Agony: The Cultural Revolution in Communist China," Far Eastern1955 Decemberb. 37, f. 495'''' Nation in Agony: The Story of Hope Hospital," Bulletin of the New York Academy of Medicine1961 January Academy of Medicineb. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical Alumni Bulletin1963b. 37, f. 496Fairbank, John K., "Assignment for the '70's," American Historical Review1969 Pebruaryb. 37, f. 496, "China's Foreign Policy in Historical Perspective," Foreign Affairs1969 Aprilb. 37, f. 496Garrett, Shirley Stone, "China Missions and the Perils of Benevolence,"1971 Mayb. 37, f. 497Godpasture, H. McKennie, "China in an American, Frank Wilson Price: A World/view1963b. 37, f. 497Holden, William M., "The Dental Surgeon in World History: The American Dentist Who Changed Asia," CAL1963b. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the China," World Affairs1963b. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's Border, As Seen Through Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Colus," Contemporary Manchuria1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Liudbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Studies1950 October <t< td=""><td>С. Ву</td><td>Author (Periodical Articles)</td><td></td></t<>	С. Ву	Author (Periodical Articles)	
Historyb. 37, f. 495'A. Nation in Agony: The Cultural Revolution in Communist China,"1966 November- Decemberb. 37, f. 495	b. 37, f. 495		1928
Problems of CommunismDecemberb. 37, f. 495and Sin-Ming Chiu, "Thought Reform in Communist China," Far Eastern1955 Decemberb. 37, f. 495Cochran, Samuel, "The Story of Hope Hospital," Bulletin of the New York1961 Januaryb. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical1963b. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical1963b. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical1963b. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical1963b. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical1963b. 37, f. 496Curran, Sagment for the '70's," American Historical Review1969 Februaryb. 37, f. 496Garrett, Shirley Stone, "China Missions and the Perils of Benevolence,"1972 Mayb. 37, f. 497Goodpasture, H. McKennie, "China in an American, Frank Wilson Price: A Bibliographical Essay," Journal of Presbyterian History1971b. 37, f. 497Horbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairsundatedb. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches1963b. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun'1976 Julyb. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun'1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Review of Politics1960 Novem	b. 37, f. 495		1961 September
Surveyb. 37, f. 495Cochran, Samuel, "The Story of Hope Hospital," Bulletin of the New York Academy of Medicine1961 January Academy of Medicineb. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical Alumni Bulletin1963b. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical Alumni Bulletin1969 Februaryb. 37, f. 496Fairbank, John K., "Assignment for the '70's," American Historical Review1969 Februaryb. 37, f. 496	b. 37, f. 495	"A Nation in Agony: The Cultural Revolution in Communist China," <i>Problems of Communism</i>	
Academy of Medicineb. 37, f. 496Curran, Jean A., "The Harvard Medical School of China," Harvard Medical Alumni Bulletin1963b. 37, f. 496Fairbank, John K., "Assignment for the '70's," American Historical Review1969 Februaryb. 37, f. 496"China's Foreign Policy in Historical Perspective," Foreign Affairs1969 Aprilb. 37, f. 496"China's Foreign Policy in Historical Perspective," Foreign Affairs1969 Aprilb. 37, f. 496"China's Foreign Policy in Historical Perspective," Foreign Affairs1969 Aprilb. 37, f. 497Goodpasture, H. McKennie, "China in an American, Frank Wilson Price: A Bibliographical Essay," Journal of Presbyterian History1971b. 37, f. 497Holden, William M., "The Dental Surgeon in World History: The American Dentist Who Changed Asia," CAL1968 Julyb. 37, f. 497Hornbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairsundatedb. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuria1963b. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's Leftist Years, 1927-1936," Modern China1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augu	b. 37, f. 495		1955 December
Alumni Bulletinb. 37, f. 496Fairbank, John K., "Assignment for the '70's," American Historical Review1969 Februaryb. 37, f. 496	b. 37, f. 495		1961 January
b. 37, f. 496 "China's Foreign Policy in Historical Perspective," Foreign Affairs1969 Aprilb. 37, f. 496Garrett, Shirley Stone, "China Missions and the Perils of Benevolence,"1972 Mayb. 37, f. 497Goodpasture, H. McKennie, "China in an American, Frank Wilson Price: A Bibliographical Essay," Journal of Presbyterian History1971b. 37, f. 497Holden, William M., "The Dental Surgeon in World History: The American Dentist Who Changed Asia," CAL1968 Julyb. 37, f. 497Hornbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairsundatedb. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches Under Communism," Religion in Life1963b. 37, f. 498Kao, Tsun-yi, "Interlinking of Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuria1941 Januaryb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Studies1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 August	b. 37, f. 496		1963
b. 37, f. 496Garrett, Shirley Stone, "China Missions and the Perils of Benevolence," Worldview1972 Mayb. 37, f. 497Goodpasture, H. McKennie, "China in an American, Frank Wilson Price: A Bibliographical Essay," Journal of Presbyterian History1971b. 37, f. 497Holden, William M., "The Dental Surgeon in World History: The American Dentist Who Changed Asia," CAL1968 Julyb. 37, f. 497Hornbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairs Under Communism," Religion in Life1963b. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches Under Communism," Religion in Life1963b. 37, f. 498Kao, Tsun-yi, "Interlinking of Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuria1941 Januaryb. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's 1976 July Leftist Years, 1927-1936," Modern China1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Review of Politics1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augustb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E., "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's1973	b. <b>37</b> , f. <b>496</b>	Fairbank, John K., "Assignment for the '70's," American Historical Review	1969 February
Worldviewb. 37, f. 497Goodpasture, H. McKennie, "China in an American, Frank Wilson Price: A Bibliographical Essay," Journal of Presbyterian History1971b. 37, f. 497Holden, William M., "The Dental Surgeon in World History: The American Dentist Who Changed Asia," CAL1968 Julyb. 37, f. 497Hornbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairs Under Communism," Religion in Lifeundatedb. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches Under Communism," Religion in Life1963b. 37, f. 498Kao, Tsun-yi, "Interlinking of Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuria1941 Januaryb. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's Review of Politics1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Studies1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augustb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 August	b. 37, f. 496	, "China's Foreign Policy in Historical Perspective," Foreign Affairs	1969 April
Bibliographical Essay," Journal of Presbyterian Historyb. 37, f. 497Holden, William M., "The Dental Surgeon in World History: The American Dentist Who Changed Asia," CAL1968 Julyb. 37, f. 497Hornbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairsundatedb. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches Under Communism," Religion in Life1963b. 37, f. 498Kao, Tsun-yi, "Interlinking of Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuria1941 Januaryb. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's IP27-1936," Modern China1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Review of Politics1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augustb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1973	b. 37, f. 496		1972 May
Dentist Who Changed Asia," CALb. 37, f. 497Hornbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairsundatedb. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches1963b. 37, f. 498Under Communism," Religion in Life1963b. 37, f. 498Kao, Tsun-yi, "Interlinking of Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuria1941 Januaryb. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's1976 Julyb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Review of Politics1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augustb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E, "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's1973	b. 37, f. 497		1971
b. 37, f. 498Jones, Francis P., "Theological Thinking in the Chinese Protestant Churches Under Communism," <i>Religion in Life</i> 1963b. 37, f. 498Kao, Tsun-yi, "Interlinking of Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," <i>Contemporary Manchuria</i> 1941 Januaryb. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's Leftist Years, 1927-1936," <i>Modern China</i> 1976 Julyb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," <i>The Review of Politics</i> 1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," <i>The Journal of Asian</i> Studies1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," <i>The Journal of Asian Studies</i> 1967 Augustb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E, "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's1973	b. 37, f. 497		1968 July
Under Communism," Religion in Lifeb. 37, f. 498Kao, Tsun-yi, "Interlinking of Ancient Cultures at Chosen Manchoukuo Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuria1941 Januaryb. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's Leftist Years, 1927-1936," Modern China1976 Julyb. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Review of Politics1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China1967 Augustb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E., "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's1973	b. 37, f. 497	Hornbeck, Stanley K., "Communism at Work in China," World Affairs	undated
Border, As Seen Through Ancient Tombs," Contemporary Manchuriab. 37, f. 498Lee, Leo Ou-Fan, "Literature on the Eve of Revolution: Reflections on Lu Xun's 1976 July Leftist Years, 1927-1936," Modern Chinab. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Review of Politicsb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studiesb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the Chinab. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studiesb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E., "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's 1973	b. 37, f. 498		1963
Leftist Years, 1927-1936," Modern Chinab. 37, f. 499Lindbeck, John M. H., "Communism, Islam and Nationalism in China," The Review of Politics1950 Octoberb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augustb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E., "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's1973	b. 37, f. 498		1941 January
Review of Politicsb. 37, f. 499Liu, Kwang-Ching, "Early Christian Colleges in China," The Journal of Asian Studies1960 Novemberb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augustb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E., "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's1973	b. 37, f. 498		1976 July
Studiesb. 37, f. 499Lutz, Jessie G., "December 9, 1935: Student Nationalism and the China Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studies1967 Augustb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E., "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's 19731973	b. 37, f. 499		1950 October
Christian Colleges," The Journal of Asian Studiesb. 37, f. 500MacInnis, Donald E., "Theological and Missiological Implications of China's 1973	b. 37, f. 499		1960 November
	b. 37, f. 499		1967 August
	b. 37, f. 500		1973

#### C. By Author (Periodical Articles) (continued)

b. 37, f. 500	Masland, John W., "Communism and Christianity in China," <i>The Journal of Religion</i>	1952 July
b. 37, f. 500	Merwin, Wallace C., "The Church in Communist China," <i>Christian World Facts</i>	1949
b. 37, f. 501	Myers, Ramon, "Land Distribution in Revolutionary China: 1890-1937," <i>The</i> Chung Chi Journal	1969 May
b. 37, f. 501	Price, Frank Wilson, "Communist China," Religion in Life	1956
b. 37, f. 501	Roy, Andrew T., The Background of the Confucian Dilemma in the Period 1927-1947," <i>The Chung Chi Journal</i>	1970 May
b. 37, f. 501	, "Confucian Thought in China in the Nineteen Thirties: Chten Li-Fu Part II: Application of His Theory to Political Questions," <i>The Chung Chi</i> <i>Journal</i>	1968 November
b. 37, f. 502	Ryan, Thornton A.,"The War of Words in the Orient," <i>The South and World Affairs</i>	1942 May
b. 37, f. 502	Smylie, Robert F.,"John Leighton Stuart: a Mission ary Diplomat in the Sino- Japanese Conflict,1937-1941," <i>Journal of Presbyterian History</i>	1975
b. 37, f. 502	Smythe, Lewis S. C., "Factors Associated with Success of Chinese Families as Families," <i>Marriage and Family Living</i>	1952 November
b. 37, f. 502	, "Missions in Communist China," World Call	1948 November
b. 37, f. 503	Spae, J. J., "A Church Open to the New China," The Japan Missionary Bulletin	1975 October
b. 37, f. 503	Stifler, Francis C., "China Loves the Bible," Christian World Facts	1949
b. 37, f. 503	Tsien, Tsuen-hsuin, "Asian Studies in America: A Historical Study," <i>Asian</i> <i>Studies</i>	1959
b. 37, f. 504	Uno, Kazumaro B., "Opium for the Pipes of China: Missionaries and the Sino-Japanese Conflict," <i>East Asia Review</i>	1940
b. 37, f. 504	Wei, Francis CM., "The Institutional Work of Christian Missions in China," International Review of Missions	1938
b. 37, f. 504	Wright, Mary C., "Modern China in Transition,1900-1950," <i>The Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science</i>	1959 January
b. 37, f. 504	Wu, Y. T., "Freedom Through Truth," <i>Tien Feng</i>	1954 January
D. Fr	om Periodicals	
b. 38, f. 505	Annales de la Propagation de la Foi	1836, 1903
	Asia: Review of the Far East (see: China Missionary Bulletin)	
b. 38, f. 506	The China Bookman	1922-1937
b. 38, f. 507	China Christian Year Book	1928
b. 38, f. 508	China Christian Year Book	1929

#### D. From Periodicals (continued)

b. 38, f. 509	China Christian Year Book	1932
b. 38, f. 510	China Christian Year Book	1932-1933
b. 38, f. 511	China Christian Year Book	1934-1935
b. 38, f. 512	China Christian Year Book	1936-1937
	China Church Year Book (see: Section H, Chinese language sources)	
b. 38, f. 513	China Mission Year Book	1910-1914
b. 38, f. 514	China Mission Year Book	1919
b. 38, f. 515	<i>China Missionary Bulletin</i> Variations in title:	1923-1926
	China Missionary, 1948-1949 June	
	China Missionary Bulletin, 1949 September-1953 July	
	Mission Bulletin, 1953 September-1959	
b. 39, f. 516	China Missionary Bulletin	1948
b. 39, f. 517	China Missionary Bulletin	1949
b. 39, f. 518	China Missionary Bulletin	1950
b. <b>39</b> , f. <b>519</b>	China Missionary Bulletin	1951
b. 39, f. 520	China Missionary Bulletin	1952
b. 39, f. 521	China Missionary Bulletin	1953
b. 39, f. 522	China Missionary Bulletin	1954
b. 40, f. 523	China Missionary Bulletin	1955
b. 40, f. 524	China Missionary Bulletin	1956
b. 40, f. 525	China Missionary Bulletin	1957
b. 40, f. 526	China Missionary Bulletin	1958
b. 40, f. 527	China Missionary Bulletin	1959
b. 40, f. 528	China Missionary Bulletin	1960
b. 40, f. 529	China Missionary Bulletin	1961
b. 40, f. 530	China Missionary Bulletin	1962
b. 40, f. 531	China Missionary Bulletin	1963
b. 40, f. 532	China's Millions	1899-1937
b. 40, f. 532	Chine-Madagascar	1949
b. 41, f. 533	The Chinese Recorder	1871-1899

#### D. From Periodicals (continued)

b.41,f.535         The Chinese Recorder         1907-1911           b.41,f.536         The Chinese Recorder         1922           b.41,f.537         The Chinese Recorder         1925           b.41,f.538         The Chinese Recorder         1926           b.41,f.539         The Chinese Recorder         1926           b.41,f.539         The Chinese Recorder         1927           b.41,f.540         The Chinese Recorder         1927           b.41,f.541         The Chinese Recorder         1932           b.41,f.542         The Chinese Recorder         1932           b.41,f.543         The Chinese Recorder         1932           b.42,f.544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b.42,f.545         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b.42,f.544         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b.42,f.545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b.42,f.546         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b.42,f.547         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b.42,f.548         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b.42,f.554         Chinese Year Book         1935           b.42,f.555         Educational Review         1997	b. 41, f. 534	The Chinese Recorder	1900-1906
b.41, f. 537The Chinese Recorder1924b.41, f. 538The Chinese Recorder1925b.41, f. 539The Chinese Recorder1926b.41, f. 540The Chinese Recorder1927b.41, f. 541The Chinese Recorder1929b.41, f. 542The Chinese Recorder1932-1933b.41, f. 543The Chinese Recorder1934b.42, f. 544The Chinese Recorder1935b.42, f. 544The Chinese Recorder1935b.42, f. 545The Chinese Recorder1936b.42, f. 546The Chinese Recorder1936b.42, f. 547The Chinese Recorder1936b. 42, f. 548The Chinese Recorder1937-1940b. 42, f. 549Chinese Recorder1937-1940b. 42, f. 549Chinese Recorder1935-1936b. 42, f. 554Chinese Recorder1936-1936b. 42, f. 554Chinese Recorder1936-1936b. 42, f. 554Chinese Recorder1937-1940b. 42, f. 554Chinese Recorder1936-1936b. 43, f. 555Educational Review1936-1936b. 43, f. 555Educational Review1936-1936b. 43, f. 556Educational Review <td>b. 41, f. 535</td> <td>The Chinese Recorder</td> <td>1907-1911</td>	b. 41, f. 535	The Chinese Recorder	1907-1911
b. 41, f. 538         The Chinese Recorder         1925           b. 41, f. 539         The Chinese Recorder         1926           b. 41, f. 540         The Chinese Recorder         1927           b. 41, f. 541         The Chinese Recorder         1929           b. 41, f. 541         The Chinese Recorder         1932           b. 41, f. 542         The Chinese Recorder         1932           b. 41, f. 543         The Chinese Recorder         1934           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Pear Book         1935           b. 42, f. 550         Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)         1965-1972, undated           b. 42, f. 551         The Chung Chi Journal         1907-1910           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1922-1922 <t< td=""><td>b. <b>41</b>, f. <b>536</b></td><td>The Chinese Recorder</td><td>1922-1923</td></t<>	b. <b>41</b> , f. <b>536</b>	The Chinese Recorder	1922-1923
b. 41, f. 539         The Chinese Recorder         1926           b. 41, f. 540         The Chinese Recorder         1927           b. 41, f. 541         The Chinese Recorder         1929           b. 41, f. 542         The Chinese Recorder         1932-1933           b. 41, f. 543         The Chinese Recorder         1934           b. 42, f. 543         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 550         Chinese Pear Book         1935           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921           b. 42, f. 551         Chinese Chinese Section H, Chinese Language sources)         1969           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1920           b. 43, f. 553         Educational Review         1920           b. 43, f. 554	b. <b>41</b> , f. <b>537</b>	The Chinese Recorder	1924
b. 41, f. 540         The Chinese Recorder         1927           b. 41, f. 541         The Chinese Recorder         1929           b. 41, f. 542         The Chinese Recorder         1932           b. 41, f. 543         The Chinese Recorder         1934           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Year Book         1937           b. 42, f. 550         Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)         1936           b. 42, f. 551         The Chung Chi Journal         1921           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1922           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1922           b. 43, f. 557 </td <td>b. <b>41</b>, f. <b>538</b></td> <td>The Chinese Recorder</td> <td>1925</td>	b. <b>41</b> , f. <b>538</b>	The Chinese Recorder	1925
b. 41, f. 541         The Chinese Recorder         1929           b. 41, f. 542         The Chinese Recorder         1932-1933           b. 41, f. 543         The Chinese Recorder         1934           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 550         Chinese Year Book         1935           b. 42, f. 551         Christan China         1921           b. 42, f. 551         The Chung Chi Journal         1921           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 554         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 557         Educational Review	b. <b>41</b> , f. <b>539</b>	The Chinese Recorder	1926
b. 41, f. 542         The Chinese Recorder         1932-1933           b. 41, f. 543         The Chinese Recorder         1934           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937-1940           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Recorder         1937-1940           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Year Book         1937-1940           b. 42, f. 550         Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)         1965-1972, undated           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1920-1922           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1920-1922           b. 43, f. 553         Educational Review         1920-1922           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1920-1922           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1920-1922           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1930-1931	b. 41, f. 540	The Chinese Recorder	1927
b. 41, f. 543         The Chinese Recorder         1934           b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937-1940           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Year Book         1935-1936           b. 42, f. 550         Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)         1936-1972, undated           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921         1937           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921         1923           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1907-1910         1943           b. 43, f. 553         Educational Review         1920-1922         1923-1925           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1926-1927         1936-1927           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1928-1929         1936-1931           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1930-1931         1936-1931           b. 43, f. 558	b. 41, f. 541	The Chinese Recorder	1929
b. 42, f. 544         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 550         Chinese Year Book         1937           b. 42, f. 550         Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)         1965           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921           b. 42, f. 551         The Chung Chi Journal         1969           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1907           b. 43, f. 553         Educational Review         1920           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1922           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1922           b. 43, f. 557         Educational Review         1930           b. 43, f. 557         Educational Review         1932           b. 43, f. 558         E	b. 41, f. 542	The Chinese Recorder	1932-1933
b. 42, f. 545         The Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Recorder         1937           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Recorder         1935           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Year Book         1935           b. 42, f. 550         Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)         1965           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921           b. 42, f. 551         The Chung Chi Journal         1969           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1907           b. 43, f. 553         Educational Review         1920           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1921           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1922           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1922           b. 43, f. 557         Educational Review         1932           b. 43, f. 558         Educational Review         1932           b. 43, f. 559         Educational Review         1932           b. 43, f. 559         Educa	b. 41, f. 543	The Chinese Recorder	1934
b. 42, f. 546         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 547         The Chinese Recorder         1936           b. 42, f. 548         The Chinese Recorder         1937-1940           b. 42, f. 549         Chinese Recorder         1935-1936           b. 42, f. 550         Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)         1965-1972, undated           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921           b. 42, f. 551         Christian China         1921           b. 42, f. 551         The Chung Chi Journal         1969           b. 43, f. 552         Educational Review         1920-1922           b. 43, f. 554         Educational Review         1923-1925           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1926-1927           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1920-1922           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1926-1927           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1926-1927           b. 43, f. 555         Educational Review         1926-1927           b. 43, f. 557         Educational Review         1930-1931           b. 43, f. 558         Educational Review         1932-1933           b. 43, f. 559         Educational Review (photocopies)	b. 42, f. 544	The Chinese Recorder	1935
b. 42, f. 547The Chinese Recorder1936b. 42, f. 548The Chinese Recorder1937-1940b. 42, f. 549Chinese Year Book1935-1936b. 42, f. 550Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)1965-1972, undatedb. 42, f. 551Christian China1921b. 42, f. 551The Chung Chi Journal1969b. 43, f. 552Educational Review1907-1910b. 43, f. 553Educational Review1920-1922b. 43, f. 554Educational Review1926-1927b. 43, f. 555Educational Review1926-1927b. 43, f. 556Educational Review1928-1929b. 43, f. 557Educational Review1928-1929b. 43, f. 558Educational Review1930-1931b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1932-1933b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1934-1938b. 43, f. 559Educational Review (photocopies)1931-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 545	The Chinese Recorder	1935
b. 42, f. 548       The Chinese Recorder       1937-1940         b. 42, f. 549       Chinese Year Book       1935-1936         b. 42, f. 550       Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)       1965-1972, undated         b. 42, f. 551       Christian China       1921         b. 42, f. 551       Christian China       1921         b. 42, f. 551       The Chung Chi Journal       1969         b. 43, f. 552       Educational Review       1907-1910         b. 43, f. 553       Educational Review       1920-1922         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1921-1925         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1926-1927         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1928-1929         b. 43, f. 556       Educational Review       1928-1929         b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1930-1931         b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1931-1933         b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review (photocopies)       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 560       Educational Review (photocopies)       1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 546	The Chinese Recorder	1936
b. 42, f. 549       Chinese Year Book       1935-1936         b. 42, f. 550       Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)       1965-1972, undated         b. 42, f. 551       Christian China       1921         b. 42, f. 551       Christian China       1926         b. 42, f. 551       The Chung Chi Journal       1969         b. 43, f. 552       Educational Review       1907-1910         b. 43, f. 553       Educational Review       1920-1922         b. 43, f. 554       Educational Review       1923-1925         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1928-1927         b. 43, f. 556       Educational Review       1928-1927         b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1930-1931         b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review (photocopies)       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 560       Educational Review (photocopies)       1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 547	The Chinese Recorder	1936
b. 42, f. 550       Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)       1965-1972, undated         b. 42, f. 551       Christian China       1921         b. 42, f. 551       The Chung Chi Journal       1969         b. 43, f. 552       Educational Review       1907-1910         b. 43, f. 553       Educational Review       1920-1922         b. 43, f. 554       Educational Review       1923-1925         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1926-1927         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1926-1927         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1928-1929         b. 43, f. 556       Educational Review       1930-1931         b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 550       Educational Review       1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 548	The Chinese Recorder	1937-1940
Landundatedb. 42, f. 551Christian China1921b. 42, f. 551The Chung Chi Journal1969b. 43, f. 552Educational Review1907-1910b. 43, f. 553Educational Review1920-1922b. 43, f. 554Educational Review1923-1925b. 43, f. 555Educational Review1926-1927b. 43, f. 555Educational Review1926-1927b. 43, f. 556Educational Review1928-1929b. 43, f. 557Educational Review1930-1931b. 43, f. 558Educational Review1932-1933b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1934-1938b. 43, f. 550Educational Review (photocopies)1915-1938, undated			
b. 42, f. 551The Chung Chi Journal1969b. 43, f. 552Educational Review1907-1910b. 43, f. 553Educational Review1920-1922b. 43, f. 554Educational Review1923-1925b. 43, f. 555Educational Review1926-1927b. 43, f. 556Educational Review1928-1929b. 43, f. 557Educational Review1930-1931b. 43, f. 558Educational Review1930-1931b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1932-1933b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1934-1938b. 43, f. 560Educational Review (photocopies)1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 549	Chinese Year Book	1935-1936
b. 43, f. 552       Educational Review       1907-1910         b. 43, f. 553       Educational Review       1920-1922         b. 43, f. 554       Educational Review       1923-1925         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1926-1927         b. 43, f. 556       Educational Review       1928-1929         b. 43, f. 556       Educational Review       1928-1929         b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1930-1931         b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review (photocopies)       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 560       Educational Review (photocopies)       1915-1938, undated			1965-1972,
b. 43, f. 553Educational Review1920-1922b. 43, f. 554Educational Review1923-1925b. 43, f. 555Educational Review1926-1927b. 43, f. 556Educational Review1928-1929b. 43, f. 557Educational Review1930-1931b. 43, f. 558Educational Review1932-1933b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1934-1938b. 43, f. 560Educational Review (photocopies)1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 550	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)	1965-1972, undated
b. 43, f. 554       Educational Review       1923-1925         b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1926-1927         b. 43, f. 556       Educational Review       1928-1929         b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1930-1931         b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 560       Educational Review (photocopies)       1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources) Christian China	1965-1972, undated 1921
b. 43, f. 555       Educational Review       1926-1927         b. 43, f. 556       Educational Review       1928-1929         b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1930-1931         b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 560       Educational Review (photocopies)       1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources) Christian China The Chung Chi Journal	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969
b. 43, f. 556Educational Review1928-1929b. 43, f. 557Educational Review1930-1931b. 43, f. 558Educational Review1932-1933b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1934-1938b. 43, f. 560Educational Review (photocopies)1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551 b. 43, f. 552	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910
b. 43, f. 557       Educational Review       1930-1931         b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 560       Educational Review (photocopies)       1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551 b. 43, f. 552 b. 43, f. 553	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational ReviewEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910 1920-1922
b. 43, f. 558       Educational Review       1932-1933         b. 43, f. 559       Educational Review       1934-1938         b. 43, f. 560       Educational Review (photocopies)       1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551 b. 43, f. 552 b. 43, f. 553 b. 43, f. 554	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910 1920-1922 1923-1925
b. 43, f. 559Educational Review1934-1938b. 43, f. 560Educational Review (photocopies)1915-1938, undated	<ul> <li>b. 42, f. 550</li> <li>b. 42, f. 551</li> <li>b. 42, f. 551</li> <li>b. 43, f. 552</li> <li>b. 43, f. 553</li> <li>b. 43, f. 554</li> <li>b. 43, f. 555</li> </ul>	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910 1920-1922 1923-1925 1926-1927
b. 43, f. 560 <i>Educational Review</i> (photocopies) 1915-1938, undated	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551 b. 43, f. 552 b. 43, f. 553 b. 43, f. 554 b. 43, f. 555 b. 43, f. 556	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910 1920-1922 1923-1925 1926-1927 1928-1929
undated	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551 b. 43, f. 552 b. 43, f. 553 b. 43, f. 554 b. 43, f. 555 b. 43, f. 555 b. 43, f. 556 b. 43, f. 557	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational ReviewEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910 1920-1922 1923-1925 1926-1927 1928-1929 1930-1931
b. 44, f. 561 Far Eastern Quarterly 1943-1951	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551 b. 43, f. 552 b. 43, f. 553 b. 43, f. 554 b. 43, f. 555 b. 43, f. 555 b. 43, f. 557 b. 43, f. 558	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational ReviewEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910 1920-1922 1923-1925 1926-1927 1928-1929 1930-1931 1932-1933
	b. 42, f. 550 b. 42, f. 551 b. 42, f. 551 b. 43, f. 552 b. 43, f. 553 b. 43, f. 554 b. 43, f. 555 b. 43, f. 555 b. 43, f. 557 b. 43, f. 558 b. 43, f. 559	Ching Feng (see also: Section H, Chinese language sources)Christian ChinaThe Chung Chi JournalEducational ReviewEducational Review	1965-1972, undated 1921 1969 1907-1910 1920-1922 1923-1925 1926-1927 1928-1929 1930-1931 1932-1933 1934-1938 1915-1938,

#### D. From Periodicals (continued)

b. 44, f. 562	F-FR (?)	undated
b. 44, f. 563	International Review of Missions	1935-1953
b. 44, f. 564	Journal of Asian Studies	1953-1976
	Mission Bulletin (1953-1959) (see: China Missionary Bulletin)	
b. 44, f. 565	Missionary Review of the World	1895-1935
b. 44, f. 566	N-CH (?)	1901-1906
b. 44, f. 567	NZM(?)	1970, undated
b. 44, f. 568	Sheng Ming (see also: Chinese language sources)	1922
b. 44, f. 569	Truth and Life (see also: Chinese language sources)	1926-1931
b. 44, f. 570	Mixed Notes (CR, CMYB, CCYB, IRM, NCC,YMCA)	1923-1931
b. 44, f. 571	Unidentified	1901, 1934, undated

#### E. Miscellaneous - 3" x 5" Format

Arranged by time periods

b. 45	Pre 1900-1924
b. <b>46</b>	1920-1950
b. <b>47</b>	Post 1950
	Arranged by topic
b. 48	Chinese society (older file)
b. <b>49</b>	Chinese society
b. <b>50</b>	Christianity in China
b. <b>51</b>	Roman Catholicism
b. <b>52</b>	Protestant denominations
b. <b>52</b>	Missionary biographies
	Miscellaneous bibliographic references
b. <b>53–5</b> 4	Mostly Chinese language sources
b. 55–57	Chinese and Western language sources
b. <b>58</b>	Box labeled "Work List"
	F. Miscellaneous - 5 1/2″ x 8 1/2″ Format
	Topically arranged within time periods
b. <b>59</b>	Pre-1900

#### F. Miscellaneous - $51/2'' \times 81/2''$ Format > Topically arranged within time periods (continued)

b. <b>60</b>	To 1910	
b. 61	1912-1921	
b. 62	1922-1927	
b. <b>63</b>	1928-1937	
b. <b>64</b>	1937-1950	
Тор	ically arranged or unsorted	
b. 65, f. 572	Roman Catholicism	
b. <b>67</b> b. <b>66</b> , f. <b>573</b>	Miscellaneous	
G. Miscel	laneous - 8 1/2" x 11" and odd-sized format	
Rela	ated to organizations	
b. 68A, f. 574	American Association for International Conciliation	1910
b. 68A, f. 575	American Historical Association, Committee on American-East Asian Relations	1970-1973
b. 68A, f. 576	Bible Union of China	1921-1929, undated
b. 68A, f. 577	China Christian Educational Association, Council of Higher Education	1924-1925, undated
b. 68A, f. 578	China Christian Educational Association, Council of Higher Education	1943-1946
b. 68A, f. 579	China Inland Mission	1925-1951, undated
b. 68A, f. 580	Chinese Theologians' Colloquium	1978, 1979
b. 68A, f. 581	Church of Christ in China, General Assembly	1942-1951
b. 98, f. 794	Church of Christ in China, Hunan Synod	1950
b. 98, f. 794	Church of Christ in China, Kwangtung Synod, Guangdong	1949-1950
b. 98, f. 795-796	Church of Christ in China, Yunnan Mission Committee	1941-1951
b. 98, f. 797	Church of Christ in China, Joint Conferences of Representatives of Mission Boards Cooperating with the CCC	1947-1950
b. 98, f. 798	Church of Christ in China, North American Advisory Committee	1950, 1951
b. 98, f. 798	Church of Christ in China, Miscellaneous	1969, 1970, undated
	Foreign Missions Conference of North America	
b. 98, f. 799	Report excerpts	1897-1919
b. 98, f. 800-801	Committee on East Asia bulletins	1941-1946

G. Miscellaneous - 8 1/2" x 11" and odd-sized format > Related to organizations > Foreign Missions Conference of North America (continued)

b. 98, f. 802-804	Far Eastern Joint Office - China Committee bulletins	1947-1950
b. 98, f. 805	Miscellaneous	1944-1950
b. 98, f. 806	International Institute of China	1897-1927
	International Missionary Council, China Study Group: The Christian Enterprise in China	
b. <b>99</b> , f. <b>807-808</b>	Miscellaneous	1953-1957, undated
b. 99, f. 809-812	Correspondence, A-Z, and anonymous	
b. 99, f. 812a	Correspondence and comments regarding articles by W. Seufert	
b. 99, f. 813-820	Replies to questionnaire: Anglican Agencies Baptist Missionary Society, British and Foreign Bible Society, China Inland Mission, Church of Scotland, English Presbyterian Mission, Friends Service Council, Methodist Missionary Society, Presbyterian Church in Ireland	
b. 99, f. 821	Replies to Survey regarding impact of Communism in China	
b. 99, f. 822-823	Bates' outlines, drafts, notes	
b. 100, f. 824	League of Christian Churches	1929
b. 100, f. 824	Mateer Memorial Institute	undated
b. 100, f. 824	Nanking Church Council	1939-1941
b. 100, f. 825	University of Nanking	1925-1950, undated
	National Christian Council of China	
b. 100, f. 826	Minutes, memoranda	1941-1945
b. 100, f. 827	Reports and articles	circa 1922-1948, undated
b. 100, f. 828	Bates' notes covering 1930s and 1940s	undated
b. 100, f. 829	Rural Church Department	1950, undated
b. 100, f. 830-831	Far Eastern Joint Office - China Committee bulletins and minutes	1951-1957
	National Council of Churches of Christ, USA (NCCCUSA)	
b. 100, f. 832	Far Eastern Office - China Committee bulletins and minutes	1958-1964
b. 100, f. 833-834	Asia Department - China Committee bulletins, minutes	1965-1967
b. 100, f. 835	Asia Department - China Study Group	1965-1966
b. <b>100</b> , f. <b>836</b>	Asia Department - China Program; including re: China Records Project	1968

G. Miscellaneous - 8 1/2" x 11" and odd-sized format > Related to organizations > National Council of Churches of Christ, USA (NCCCUSA) (continued)

b. 100, f. 837-838	East Asia Department- China Program; including re: China 1969-1976 Records Project	
b. 101, f. 839	North China Christian Rural Service Union 1949-19	
b. 101, f. 840	United Christian Missionary Society: Data on Mission stations in China to 1922	
Rela	ted to conferences	
b. 101, f. 841	General Conference of Missionaries to China	1890
b. 101, f. 842	Second Shantung Missionary Conference, Wei-hien	1898
b. 101, f. 843	West China Conference	1899
b. 101, f. 844	Ecumenical Missionary Conference, New York City	1900
b. 101, f. 845	Women's Conference in China on Homelife of Christian Women	1900
b. 101, f. 846	Conference on Federation, Beijing (Peking)	1905
b. 101, f. 847-848	China Centenary Missionary Conference, Shanghai	1907
b. 101, f. 849	World Missionary Conference, Edinburgh	1910
b. 101, f. 850	China Continuation Committee Conference	1913
b. 101, f. 851	National Christian Conference	1922
b. 101, f. 852	Conference on Christianizing Economic Relations, Shanghai	1927
b. 101, f. 852	Central China Church Conference, Wuchang	1929
b. 101, f. 853	Eastern Asia Christian Conference	1949
b. 101, f. 854	Miscellaneous China - related conferences	1951-1977
Тор	ics	
b. 102, f. 855	Anti-Christian/Anti-Foreign Movement	
b. 102, f. 856	Bibliographies	
b. 102, f. 857	Chinese Religions	
b. 102, f. 858	Circular letters from China missionaries	
b. 102, f. 859	The French Protectorate	
b. <b>102</b> , f. <b>860</b>	Missionaries and Chinese Law	
b. <b>102</b> , f. <b>861-871</b>	Nanjing (Nanking) during Sino-Japanese conflict See also <u>Box 126, Folder 1137</u>	November 1937- 1941, undated

b. 102, f. 861	1937 November Note on official Japanese government secrecy, November 12, 1936[7?] Letter from Bates to the Mayor of Nanking, November 21, 1937 Memo on the creation of the International Safety Zone Committee, November 22, 1937 Announcement of telegram from International Committee to Japanese authorities in Shanghai, November 30, 1937 "List of American Citizens reported to be residents in Nanking on November 23, 1937"	1937 November
b. 102, f. 862	1937 December 2-15 "List of Documents Regarding Rice and Flour Assigned to the International Committee By the Mayor of Nanking, but held by the Japanese Military Authorities", December 1937 Telegram from American Embassy in Shanghai to Nanking Safety Zone Committee, December 2, 1937 Letter from George Atcheson, Jr, Second Secretary of US Embassy, to "All Americans in Nanking", December 2, 1937 Telegram from John Rabe, Chair of Nanking Safety Zone, to Father Jacquinot, Chair of Shanghai Safety Zone, to Father Jacquinot, Chair of Shanghai Safety Zone, December 2, 1937 Telegram from Father Jacquinot, Chair of Shanghai Safety Zone, to Nanking Safety Zone Committee, December 4, 1937 Letter from Nanking Safety Zone Committee to Mr. W. H. Donald, Esq., December 4, 1937 Letter from US Embassy to US citizens regarding evacuation of Nanking, December 4, 1937 Letter from Americans to leave Nanking, December 5, 1937 Letter from Americans to leave Nanking Safety Zone, December 5, 1937 Circular from US Embassy to remaining Americans in Nanking, December 5, 1937 Circular to Americans in Nanking from the Embassy of the United States of America, December 9, 1937 Report by Nanking Safety Zone on boundaries of Zone, December 10, 11:00 AM "Position of the International Relief Committee (Nanking) in Regard to Rice and Flour Assigned to it by the Former Mayor of the City", December 13, 1937 "Western Nationals in Nanking at the Time of Japanese Entry", December 13, 1937 Letter written by Miss Frances Culley, American nurse in Wuhu General Hospital to Alexander Paul in the United States, December 14, 1937 A collection of letters written by foreign nationals in Nanking, December 14, 1937 Notes from Bates on situation soon after Japanese entry into Nanking, December 15, 1937 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to the Japanese Commander of Nanking, December 14, 1937 Notes from Bates on situation soon after Japanese entry into Nanking, December 15, 1937 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of	1937 December 2-15

b. 102, f. 863	1937 December 16-20	1937 December				
	<u>"Cases of Disorder by Japanese Soldiers in the Safety Zone"</u> , 16-					
	December 16, 1937					
	"Western Nationals in Nanking", December 16, 1937					
	Letter from D.Y. Giang to Dr. George Fitch, Professor at University					
	of Nanking, December 17, 1937					
	Letter from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy					
	regarding incidents in Safety Zone, December 18, 1937					
	Telegram from American Consulate in Shanghai to Japanese					
	Embassy in Nanking, December 20, 1937					
	Telegram from American Consulate in Shanghai to Japanese					
	Embassy in Nanking, with signatures of Committee Members,					
	December 20, 1937					
	<u>"Memorandum of Interview with Chief of Special Service Corps"</u> ,					
	December 15, 1937					
	Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of Safety Zone, to Tokuyasu					
	Fukuda, attaché to the Japanese Embassy, December 16, 1937					
	Letter from W.P. Mills to the Officers of the Japanese Embassy,					
	December 17, 1937					
	Letter from John Rabe, Chair of the Safety Zone, to the Imperial					
	Japanese Embassy, December 17, 1937					
	Letter from John Rabe, Chair of the Safety Zone, to the Imperial					
	Japanese Embassy, December 18, 1937					
	Collection of letters from members of the Safety Zone					
	Committee to the Imperial Japanese Embassy, December 19, 1937					
	<u>Letter from John Rabe, Chair of the Safety Zone, to the Imperial</u>					
	Japanese Embassy, December 20, 1937					
	A collection of letters from Bates to the Japanese Embassy,					
	<u>December 25 - January 11</u>					
	Letters from Bates to American Embassy, January 18 - January 27,					
	1938					
	<u>"Notes with a Copy of Correspondence between the University</u>					
	<u>"Notes with a Copy of Correspondence between the University</u> of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864		1937 December				
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937	1937 December 21-31				
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking"					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31					
b. <b>102</b> , f. <b>86</b> 4	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy,					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T.? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T.? December 21, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937 Letter from S.T. ? to Dr. Bates, December 25, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937 Letter from S.T. ? to Dr. Bates, December 25, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 26, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T.? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 1937 December 21-31 "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T. ? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Cetter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Collection of letters from Safety Zone to Japanese Embassy, December 26 - 30, 1937					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 <b>1937 December 21-31</b> "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T.? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Cetter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Collection of letters from Safety Zone to Japanese Embassy, December 26 - 30, 1937 Letter from John Rabe, Chairman of the Safety Zone Committee,					
b. 102, f. 864	of Nanking and the Japanese Embassy", December 16-17, 1937 <b>1937 December 21-31</b> "American Series Regarding Japanese Occupation of Nanking" Documenting letters sent from Safety Zone Committee to Japanese Embassy Part of a note documenting incidents of abuse by Japanese soldiers Letter from Foreign Community of Nanking to Japanese Embassy, December 21, 1937 Letter to Bates from S.T.? December 21, 1937 Telegram from American Consulate General, December 22, 1937 Letter from Hubert L Sone, Chairman Property Committee of Nanking Theological Seminary, to Japanese Embassy, December 24, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy, December 25, 1937 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of the Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy", December 26, 1937 Collection of letters from Safety Zone to Japanese Embassy, December 26 - 30, 1937 Letter from John Rabe, Chairman of the Safety Zone Committee, to Japanese Embassy, December 27, 1937					

<u>"Memorandum of Interview Regarding Wang Hsing-Lung Case",</u> <u>December 31, 1937</u>

b. 102, f. 865	1938 January New Year greeting card from International Committee for Nanking Safety Zone Report from Bates to New York and Indianapolis Five goals of the Safety Zone Committee, January 3, 1938 "Memorandum on Coal Stock, No. 2", January 1, 1938 "Hsin Sun Pao" Newspaper article translated by Bates, January 6, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Japanese Army Supply Department, January 6, 1938 Letter from Lewis Smythe to American Embassy in Nanking, January 7, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Japanese Army Supply Department, January 7, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Japanese Army Supply Department, January 7, 1938 Letter from Mae to friends, January 7, 1938 Newspaper article translated: "Japanese Troops Soothe the Refugees", January 8, 1938 "To Allison at his request", January 8, 1938 Notes by Bates on foreign property in Nanking, January 12, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Tokuyasa Fukuda of the Japanese Embassy, January 14, 1938 Telegram from Bates to Priest, January 15, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy in Nanking, January 15, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy in Nanking, January 17, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Japanese Embassy in Nanking, January 17, 1938 Letter from Lewis Smythe to Mr. C. L. Boynton, National Christian Council, January 22, 1938 Notes on situation in Nanking and letter from Refugees to International Safety Zone Committee, January 29, 1938 "Notes on Present Situation in Nanking", January 31, 1938	1938 January
b. 102, f. 866	1938 February "Classes and Meetings for Refugees in University Main Buildings", 1938 Telegram from John Rabe to German Consulate General (IN GERMAN) Letter from Bates to Mr. Boynton (National Christian Council), February 1, 1938 Letter from John Rabe, Chair of Safety Zone, to Mr. Hidaka of the Japanese Embassy, February 3, 1938 Notes written by Bates on situation in Nanking, February 3, 1938 Telegram from US Secretary of State Hull to Bates, February 4, 1938 Letter from John Rabe to Mr. Allison at the American Embassy, February 6, 1938 "Matsui Orders Tightening of Army Discipline", Article from the China Press, February 8, 1938 "Extract from Letter from Miss J.T. to Mrs. L.B", February 10, 1938 "Relief Problems in Nanking upon which Cooperation of Japanese Authorities is Especially Urgent", February 10, 1938 "Relief Situation in Nanking", February 14, 1938 Letter from John Rabe to Shanghai Nanking Relief Association, Attn: Rev. P.F. Price, Chairman, February 19, 1938 "Address of John Rabe at Farewell Party by Staff of Nanking Safety Zone", February 21, 1938	1938 February

	General thank you letter from John Rabe to American, German, Japanese and British Embassy representatives, February 21, 1938 "Memorandum on Relief Problem in Nanking", February 22, 1938 "Preliminary report on Christian work in Nanking", Winter 1938 "Refugees in the Occupied Areas", Translated newspaper article from Sin Shun Pao, February 24, 1938	
b. 102, f. 867	1938 March Survey of damages surrounding Safety Zone, 1938 Introduction to Survey of damages surrounding Safety Zone, March 1, 1938 "Notes on Present Situation", March 1, 1938 Letter from W.P. Mills, Vice-Chair of Safety Zone, to Lieutenant- Colonel Hirota, March 2, 1938 "From Nanking Gazette (Nanking Kung Pao)", Article translated by Bates about Tao His-San"s lost Buddhist relics, March 2, 1938 Notes about Tao His-San"s lost Buddhist relics, March 2, 1938 Notes about Nanking compiled by Bates, March 3, 1938 "Introduction to Notes on Nanking Economics", March 3, 1938 Letter from Lewis Smythe, Secretary of Safety Zone Committee, to China International Famine Relief Commission, March 3, 1938 "Nanking People"s News", Article translated by Bates, March 10, 1938 Report by W.P. Mills, Vice-Chairman of the Safety Zone Committee, on specific incident with family of Ts'ai Pang Hseng "Notes on the Present Situation", March 21, 1938 Comparison between German atrocities in Belgium in WWI and Japanese atrocities in Nanking, March 21, 1938 Telegram from Mrs. Bates to Miner Searle Bates, March 29, 1938 "The Spirit of the new Reconstruction", A translation of a Japanese army poster, March 31, 1938 "Conversation of Consul Tanaka with Bates", March 31, 1938 "Results of Investigation of 13,530 families who applied for relief during March", March 1938 "Reports of the Rehabilitation Commission of the International Relief Committee", February and March 1938	1938 March
b. 102, f. 868	1938 April-November "List of Documents Regarding Rice and Flour Assigned to the International Committee by the Mayor of Nanking but held by the Japanese Military Authorities" (2 pages), December 1937 Letter from W.P. Mills, Vice-Chair of the Safety Zone Committee, to Yoshiyuki Hanawa, the Consul-General of Japan, April 13, 1938 "The Spirit of the New Reconstruction" A translation of Japanese army poster, April 28, 1938 Incident report by Minnie Vautrin, May 13, 1938 Letter from Lewis Smythe to Dr. Imai, May 13, 1938 Letter from Lewis Smythe to Dr. Imai, May 13, 1938 Letter from Lewis Smythe to Dr. John Earle Baker of Shanghai, June 20, 1938 Letter from Lewis Smythe to Dr. G Rosen, German Embassy, Mr. E.W. Jeffery, British Embassy and Mr. John M. Allison, American Embassy, April 23, 1938 Report on relief efforts, April 30, 1938 Report on relief efforts, April 1938 "Considerations in Determining the Program of the International Relief Committee" (2 pages), May 14, 1938 The results of investigation of 52,539 families who applied for relief from February to May 1938 Letter from George Fitch to Lewis Smythe, August 3, 1938	1938 April- November

	"Scraps of Economic Information" (2 pages), September 10, 1938 Letter from International Committee to Mr. S. Hidaka of the Japanese Embassy in Shanghai, September 10, 1938 "Work and Program of the Nanking International Relief Committee" (4 pages), November 1, 1938 Booklet compilation of reports made by the International Relief Committee, November 1937 - April 30, 1938	
b. <b>102</b> , f. <b>869</b>	<b>1939</b> Booklet by Lewis Smythe, "War damage in the Nanjing area, Dec. <u>1937" (41 pages)</u>	1939
b. 102, f. 870	1940-1941 "Japanese propaganda flyers" (3 pages), 1938-1939 Notes on the relief work in Nanking, 1939-1940 "Suggested Plan for Survey of Family Records" (3 pages), 1940 "Selections from Report of Survey, based on Families Relieved Winter-Spring 1940", Winter-Spring 1940 "Nanking International Relief Committee - Summary Program", September 25, 1940 Letter to Hall listing shipping restrictions between Nanking and Shanghai, October 12, 1940 "Report of the Nanking International Relief Committee" (5 pages), May 1, 1939 - April 30, 1941 "Nanking - Record of Average Retail Prices", 1941 "Price Changes In Percentage", 1941	1940-1941
b. 102, f. 871	Undated <u>"Brothels are Political Tools in "The New Order in East Asia"" (2</u> pages) Photograph of Japanese army poster advertising brothel in Nanking. Poster appeared in the Eve Post in Japan and has been <u>translated here.</u> <u>47 pages of miscellaneous documents related to the</u> <u>International Relief Committee</u>	Undated
b. <b>103</b> , f. <b>872-883</b>	Political and religious situation, including "Actual Experience with Communism in China" by a Chinese Leader, December, 1952	1920s-1970s, undated
b. 103, f. 872-873	Political and religious situation	1920s-1930s
b. 103, f. 874	Political and religious situation <u>"Secret Japanese Press Laws in North China" (4 pages),</u> <u>September 1937</u> <u>Letter from Edwin Marx, Mission Secretary, to Mr. Paul, January</u> <u>11, 1938</u> <u>Letters from Phillips House to friends in the United States,</u> January 21, 1938	1937-1938
b. 103, f. 875	Political and religious situation Summary of Japanese army slogans, January 1, 1939 "Political and Economic Conditions in the Occupied Areas of East Central China" (8 pages) Letter from International Committee to the American Advisory Committee on Civilian Relief in China and the British Fund for China Relief, October 14, 1939 Study on Japanese propaganda, 1930s? "Japanese Propaganda in the Mirror of Events" (4 pages), 1930s?	1939

G. Miscellaneous - 8 1/2" x 11" and odd-sized format > Topics > Political and religious situation, including "Actual Experience [...] (continued)

b. 103, f. 876-883	Political and religious situation	1940s-1970s, undated
b. 104, f. 884-885	Miscellaneous handwritten notes	
b. 104, f. 886-887	Miscellaneous typescript notes	
b. 104, f. 888	Miscellaneous typescript notes and documents	
b. 104, f. 889	Miscellaneous printed material	
H.C	hinese Language Sources	
b. 68B, f. 582	Bibliographies	circa 1912-1971
b. 68B, f. 583	Ch'ing-ch'ao hsu wen-hsien t'ung-k'ao	1885-1908
b. 68B, f. 584	China Church Year Book	1914-1936
b. 68B, f. 585	Chiao-yu chi-k'an	1930-1933
b. 68B, f. 586	Ching Feng	1922-1972
b. 68B, f. 587	Hsin-ts'uan yo-chang	circa 1900-1909
b. 68B, f. 588	Shih-lu (?)	1902-1910, 1970
b. 68B, f. 589	Yang seng-fu	circa 1897-1921
b. 68B, f. 590	Christian Histories	
b. 68B, f. 591	Communist Histories	
b. 68B, f. 592	General Histories	
b. 68B, f. 593	Notes and bibliographic references: 5" x 6"	
b. 69, f. 594-596	Notes and bibliographic references: 5 1/2" x 8 1/2 "	
b. 69, f. 597	Notes and bibliographic references: 8" x 11/13"	
b. 70, f. 600-603	Notes and bibliographic references: Photocopies	
b. 70, f. 604-606	Notes and bibliographic references: Printed Material	
b. 105, f. 890	Unidentified handwritten notes (see also: Series II, Section D, for additional references to Chinese language sources)	

# Series III: "Christian Effort in Chinese Society" drafts

The first folder of this Series contains material which is helpful for understanding and assessing the drafts that follow. It includes Bates' statement indicating what he had accomplished by 1971, proposed introductory material, and the outline from which Bates was working, with explanations provided by his friend and colleague M.O. Williams who did much to sort through and provide order for the Bates manuscript. The last folder of the Series contains letters, memoranda, and reports which evaluate the Bates manuscript and suggest ways in which it could be made useful for scholars or laypeople. The drafts are arranged according to Bates' outline. There are topical drafts, ? drafts, and drafts, representing different stages of preparation for the final manuscript. At the time of his death Bates had prepared ? drafts for the entire manuscript and revised, more concise drafts for outline sections I.A. and I.B. 1 through 9. For the major sections A and B within each time period, topical drafts are listed first when available. Because of some overlapping and ambiguity the topical drafts for period I are listed alphabetically by title or subject rather than according to outline number. Probable appropriate outline numbers are marked on the drafts and can be deduced from the titles. Topical drafts for period II are listed by title according to outline number.

b. 116, f. 993	Miscellaneous work notes and outlines "Some Indicators of What Has Been Done", 1971; Introductory material, 1973; Outline and explanation of drafts, 1979
	I. 1890-1906
	A. The China Scene
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"China and the Chinese: Missionary Attitudes and Evaluations"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"China: Economic and Social Notes"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"China: Political"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"China Scene"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"Chinese Proposals for the Regulation of Missions"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"The Chinese Government and Foreign Interests"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"Christianity and the Taiping Rebellion"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"Conflict of Cultures and Nations"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>99</b> 4	"Fears of Western Invasion and Absorption"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>995</b>	"Government and Legal Relations"
b. 116, f. 995	"Heterodoxy, Sectarianism, Rebellion"
b. <b>116,</b> f. <b>995</b>	"Ignorance, Prejudice, Charges of Magic, Atrocities"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>995</b>	"Kang-Liang, T'an and Their Associates"
b. <b>116,</b> f. <b>995</b>	"Legal and Administrative Measures Against Christians"
b. <b>116,</b> f. <b>995</b>	"A Note on the Catholic Position and the French Protectorate"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"Prejudice, Notably the Prejudice of Officials and Scholars"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"Anti-Christian, or Anti-Foreign? Riotous Attacks and Violent Controversy"

#### I. 1890-1906 > A. The China Scene (continued)

b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"Reform and Reformers Late in the Nineteenth Century"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"The Reformers and Religion"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"Relations with Governments; Religious Liberty"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"The Sacred Edict - Orthodoxy vs. Heterodoxy"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"Some Relations of Christianity to General Thought and Education"
b. <b>116</b> , f. <b>996</b>	"Treaties and Related Rights Concerning Missionaries and Their Work"
b. 116, f. 997-998	Regarding Boxer crisis
b. 116, f. 999-1000	Regarding Chinese religions
b. 116, f. 1001	Untitled and fragments
b. 116, f. 1002	1. Society and state: 🏶 draft
b. 116, f. 1003	1. Society and state: draft - handwritten
b. 117, f. 1004	1. Society and state: draft - typed
b. <b>117</b> , f. <b>1005</b>	2. Government and legal relations: $oldsymbol{\Phi}$ draft and Copy for typist showing how Bates went from $oldsymbol{\Phi}$ draft to draft
b. 117, f. 1006	2. Government and legal relations: , pp. 1-27
b. 117, f. 1007	2. Government and legal relations: draft, pp. 28-54
b. <b>117</b> , f. <b>1008</b>	2. Government and legal relations: draft for supplement (1901-1907), handwritten and typed.
b. 117, f. 1009	3. Clashing of cultures $oldsymbol{arepsilon}$ draft, typed and handwritten revision draft
b. 117, f. 1010	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: $oldsymbol{arphi}$ drafts
b. 117, f. 1011	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: $oldsymbol{arphi}$ draft on Boxer Crisis
b. <b>117</b> , f. <b>1012</b>	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: ${f artheta}$ draft on Boxer Crisis - revised to
b. <b>117</b> , f. <b>1013</b>	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: � drafts - early, fragmentary
b. <b>117</b> , f. <b>101</b> 4	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: $oldsymbol{\vartheta}$ draft pp. 1-30, typed and handwritten
b. <b>117</b> , f. <b>1015</b>	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: draft pp. 31-49, typed and handwritten
b. <b>117</b> , f. <b>1016</b>	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: draft pp. 50-64e, typed and handwritten
b. 117, f. 1017	4. Reform and reformers - Crisis of imperialist encroachment: draft pp. 65-134, typed
b. 118, f. 1018	5. China in reform by Conservatives, 1901-1907: � draft

#### I. 1890-1906 (continued)

B. The	Christian	Effort:	activities	and	practices

b. 118	"The Bible: Translation"
b. 118	"China and the Chinese: Missionary Attitudes"
b. <b>118</b>	"Chinese Christian Leaders: Training of Pastors"
b. <b>118</b>	"Chinese Overseas"
b. 118	"Chinese Society and Christian Concerns Therein"
b. <b>118</b>	"Chinese Traits"
b. 118	"Christian Literature"
b. <b>118</b>	"Christian Literature, Comprehensively Considered"
b. <b>118</b>	"Christian Literature Suitable and Available"
b. 118	"The Condition of China and the Church in 1900"
b. 118	"Cooperation, Federation, Union"
b. 118	"International Problems of Concern to Missinaries"
b. <b>118</b>	"Evangelistic Purposes, Odysseys, and Programs"
b. <b>118</b>	"German and Scandinavian Societies"
b. <b>118</b>	"Homelands and Relationships"
b. <b>118</b>	"The Homelands and Their Changes"
b. <b>118</b>	"Independence: Self-Reliance, Self-Support, Chinese-Leadership"
b. 118	"Medical Work"
b. <b>118</b>	"Mission Policy and Practice in the Focus of 1900"
b. <b>118</b>	"Missionaries as a Body or Collectively"
b. <b>118</b>	"Missionaries: Their Numbers and Some of Their Problems"
b. <b>118</b>	"Missionary Language and Communication"
b. <b>118</b>	"Missions and Their Work up to 1900"
b. <b>118</b>	"Music and Art"
b. <b>118</b>	"Opium"
b. <b>118</b>	"Peoples on the Margins: Tribes, Moslems, and the Like"
b. <b>118</b>	"Poverty, Relief, and Industrial Work"
b. <b>118</b>	"Problems and Needs of Children and Women"
b. <b>118</b>	"Schools and Training"

#### I. 1890-1906 > B. The Christian Effort: activities and practices (continued)

b. 118	"Some Data on Mission Activities, 1900"
b. <b>118</b>	"Select Relationships of China Missions with the;Home Base"
b. <b>118</b>	"Socio-Ethical Concerns"
b. <b>118</b>	"Some Problems in Policy and Practice"
b. <b>118</b>	"Some Specific Secular Judgments on the Character of Missionaries"
b. <b>118</b>	"Some Views Broad and Long"
b. <b>118</b>	"1901-1911: Some Broad Views"
b. <b>118</b>	"Supplementary Items of Programs and Methods"
b. <b>118</b>	"Supplementary Notes on Women's Work and Work for Women"
b. <b>118</b>	"Timothy Richard: Special Challenges and Projects"
b. <b>118</b>	"Special group of materials on the YMCA here displaced"
b. <b>118</b>	"Some Situations by Provinces and Regions"
b. <b>118</b>	"Trends Near the Turn of the Century"
b. 118, f. 1024	1. Broad introductory overview: draft, typed and handwritten
b. 118, f. 1025	2,3. Missions and churches: draft , � draft
b. <b>118</b> , f. <b>1026</b>	4. Major aims, policies, adaptation: draft
b. 118, f. 1027	5. Christian thought: concern with Chinese religion draft
b. 118, f. 1028	6. Methods and programs (special groups) draft
b. 118, f. 1029	7. Evangelization, growth draft
b. 118, f. 1030	8. Religious education, training of workers draft
b. 119, f. 1031	9. Education: schools and colleges � draft
b. <b>119</b> , f. 1032	10. Service: medical, social, YMCA and YWCA 🏶 draft
b. <b>119</b> , f. 1033	11. Bible, Christian literature 🕈 draft
b. <b>119</b> , f. 1034	12. The Chinese Christian Community � draft
b. 119, f. 1035	13. Missionaries: select aspects of life � draft
b. <b>119</b> , f. 1036	draft, draft entitled "Missionaries and the Church" (also applicable to I.B, 2 and 3)
(	C. Trends in Christian effort
b. 119, f. 1037	Drafts

II. 1907-1922

A. National Scene in its Bearing on Christian Effort

#### II. 1907-1922 > A. National Scene in its Bearing on Christian Effort (continued)

b. <b>119</b> , f. <b>1038</b>	A.1. "Governmental and Legal Relationships"
b. 119, f. 1039	A.2. "Relations with General Thought and Intellectual Leaders"
b. 119, f. 1040	A.3."Chinese Religions; Christian Attitudes and Relationships"
b. 119, f. 1041	1. Society, Government, Law
b. 119, f. 1042	2. Currents of Thought; Education
b. <b>119</b> , f. <b>1043</b>	3. Religions
B. Ch	nristian Efforts
b. <b>119</b> , f. <b>104</b> 4	B.1. "Cooperation and Union"
b. 119, f. 1045	B.2. "Missions and Churches: By Locale"
b. <b>119</b> , f. <b>1046</b>	B.3. "Churches and Missions: Denominations"; B.3 "Mission Church Relationships"; B.3."Self-Reliance and Independence"
b. 119, f. 1047	B.4. "Theology: Supplementary Items"
b. 120, f. 1048	B.5. "Theology: Supplementary Items"
b. 120, f. 1049	B.6. "Peoples Other Than Chinese: The Border Lands"
b. 120, f. 1050	B.7. "Evangelism; Revivals"
b. 120, f. 1051	B.8. "Reel I"
b. 120, f. 1052	B.9. "Colleges and Related Christian Interests"
b. 120, f. 1053	B.10. "Socio-Ethical Needs and Problems"
b. 120, f. 1054	B.11."Bible Items Derived from General Reports"
b. 120, f. 1055	B.12. "Select Supplementary Notes on Chinese Leadership"
b. 120, f. 1056	B.13. "Representation by Missionaries of China and the Chinese Church"
b. 120, f. 1057	C. "Towards Summary and Interpretation"
b. 120, f. 1058	1. Broad View, Cooperation and Union
b. 120, f. 1059	2. The Churches and Their Selfhood
b. 120, f. 1060	3. Missions as Working Bodies
b. 120, f. 1061	4. Aims, Policies, Adaptation, Socio-Ethical Concerns
b. 120, f. 1062	5. Theology and Christian Thought
b. 120, f. 1063	6. Programs, Methods, Special Groups
b. 120, f. 1064	7. Evangelism and Revivals
b. 120, f. 1065	8. Religious Education and Training of Workers
b. 120, f. 1066	9. Education; Christian Schools, Colleges and Universities

#### II. 1907-1922 > B. Christian Efforts (continued)

b. 120, f. 1067	10. Service: Social, Medical, Rural, YMCA and YWCA
b. 121, f. 1068	11. Christian Literature and Bible
b. 121, f. 1069	12. Chinese Christian Community
b. 121, f. 1070	13. External Relations, Missionaries Home Base
III. <b>2</b>	922-1937
	A. National Scene in its Bearing on Christian Effort
b. 121, f. 1070	A.1."Governmental and Legal Relations"
b. 121, f. 1071	A.2."General Thought and General Education"
b. 121, f. 1072	A.2."The Anti-Christian or Anti-Religious Movement": ? draft pp. 1-84
b. 121, f. 1073	A.2."The Anti-Christian or Anti-Religious Movement": ? draft pp. 85-163
b. 121, f. 1074	1. Society, government, law
b. 121, f. 1075	2. Currents of thought, education
b. 121, f. 1076	3. Religions
	B. Christian Efforts - Activities and Interests
b. 122, f. 1077	B.1. "Cooperation and Union"
b. 122, f. 1078	B. 2,3. "Church-Mission Relations"
b. 122, f. 1079	B.4,6. "Tribes and Border Lands"
b. 122, f. 1080	B.8. "Religious Education: Training of Christian Workers"
b. 122, f. 1081	B.9. "Christian Colleges and Universities in Their China Setting"
b. 122, f. 1082	B.10. "Social and Ethical Concerns"
b. 122, f. 1083	B.11. "The Bible and Christian Literature"
b. 122, f. 1084	B.12."Some Chinese Christians and Their Views"
b. 122, f. 1085	B.13. "Missionary" (fragment)
b. 122, f. 1086	1. Broad view, cooperation, union: 1928-1937
b. 122, f. 1087	1. Broad view, cooperation, union: 1922-1937 (pp. 1-110)
b. 122, f. 1088	1. Broad view, cooperation, union: 1922-1937 (pp. 111-163)
b. 122, f. 1089	2. Churches, their development, self-reliance
b. 122, f. 1090	3. Missions as working bodies
b. 122, f. 1091	4. Aims, policies, communication, adaptation
b. 122, f. 1092	5. Theology and Christian thought, Chinese religions (pp. 1-92, 10-20)

#### III. 1922-1937 > B. Christian Efforts - Activities and Interests (continued)

b. 123, f. 1093	5. Theology and Christian thought, Chinese religions (pp. 1-108)
b. 123, f. 1094	6. Programs, methods, special groups (pp. 1-64)
b. 123, f. 1095	6. Programs, methods, special groups (pp. 65-95)
b. 123, f. 1096	7. Evangelism and revivals
b. 123, f. 1097	8. Religious education, Sunday schools, training of workers
b. 123, f. 1098	9. Education: Christian schools, colleges, universities ( $oldsymbol{\Phi}$ (1)-(4) through middle schools)
b. 123, f. 1099	9. Education: Christian schools, colleges, universities (overall - middle schools)
b. 123, f. 1100-1101	9. Education: Christian schools, colleges, universities (higher education)
b. 123, f. 1102	9. Education: Christian schools, colleges, universities (6-9, Special schools, Association, Relationship in government and culture)
b. 123, f. 1103	10. Service: medical, social, rural, YMCA, YWCA (social and ethical concerns)
b. 124, f. 1104	10. Service: medical, social, rural, YMCA, YWCA (rural, pp. 1-55)
b. 124, f. 1105	10. Service: medical, social, rural, YMCA, YWCA (rural, pp. 56-149, 1-4)
b. 124, f. 1106	10. Service: medical, social, rural, YMCA, YWCA (social needs, YMCA, YWCA)
b. 124, f. 1107	10. Service: medical, social, rural, YMCA, YWCA (medical, pp. 1-75)
b. 124, f. 1108	10. Service: medical, social, rural, YMCA, YWCA (medical, pp. 76-113, 1-29)
b. 124, f. 1110-1111	11. Christian literature and Bible
b. 124, f. 1112	12. Chinese Christian community
b. 124, f. 1113-1114	13. External relations; missionaries, nome base
b. 124, f. 1115	14. Roman Catholic missions
b. 124, f. 1116	15. Summary, interpretations
IV. 1937-7	1950
A.1	National Scene, In its Bearing on Christian Effort
b. 125, f. 1117	1. Society, Government, Law
b. <b>125</b> , f. <b>1118-1119</b>	2, 3. Chinese Thought and Religion
B. C	Christian Efforts
b. 125, f. 1120-1121	1. Broad view, Cooperation, union
b. 125, f. 1122-1123	2. The Churches
b. <b>125</b> , f. <b>1124</b>	4. Aims, Policies, Socio-Ethical Concerns

#### IV. 1937-1950 > B. Christian Efforts (continued)

b. <b>125</b> , f. <b>1125</b>	5. Theology and Christian Thought	
b. 125, f. 1126	8. Religious Education; Theological education	
b. 125, f. 1127	9. Education, Christian Schools, Colleges and Universities	
b. 125, f. 1128	10. Service: Medical, Social, YMCA and YWCA	
b. 125, f. 1129	11. Christian Literature	
b. 125, f. 1130	13. External Relations, Missionaries, Beyond China	
C. Summary, Interpretation, Perspective		
b. 125, f. 1131	Drafts	
b. 125, f. 1131a	Reports, memoranda evaluating Bates' manuscript	

## Series IV: Documentation of prominent Chinese Christians

The material of Series IV is divided into four sections:

Lists Notes, arranged by format Information contributed by others, arranged alphabetically by source Biographical sketches, arranged alphabetically

The Stage 2 lists and indices represent the most complete information regarding Chinese Christians which Bates had compiled. Information contributed by others includes annotated Stage 2 lists, letters of comment and material from the earlier Columbia University Research Project on Men and Politics in Modern China. The biographical sketches of Chinese Christians are of varying degrees of completeness.

	Lists
b. <b>71</b> , f. 607	Stage 1 full sets
b. <b>71</b>	Cover letter: "To Select Friends Whose Interest and Cooperation are Trusted"
b. <b>71</b>	List A: "Christians in Boorman, Biographical Dictionary of Republican China"
b. <b>71</b>	List B: "First Additional List, from L. C. Cio for the China Christian Year Book 1936-1937"
b. <b>71</b>	List C: "Second Additional List, typed by Frank Price 1956-1957"
b. <b>71</b>	List D: "Third Additional List of names found in Who's Who in China (1918-1919) and in the few issues of The China Year Book which carried such sections"
b. <b>71</b>	List E: "Other Christians, reported from miscellaneous sources"
b. <b>71</b>	List F: "Further Christians, known solely or chiefly as officers or prominent in Chinese Students Christian Association in the U.S."
b. <b>71</b>	List G: "Are they Christians?"
b. <b>71</b> , f. 608	Request for assistance: "Toward a List of Prominent Chinese Christians"
b. 71, f. 609-610	Stage 2 full sets
b. <b>71</b>	Cover sheet: "Not to be Cited or Publicly Referred to While in Labored Trial and Error"
b. <b>7</b> 1	List A: "Chinese Christians of the mainland, of some prominence 1900-1950, contained in 'B', Boorman's Biographical Dictionary of Republican China; in 'C', Chu Li-teh (L. D. Cio), 'Who's Who Among Chinese Christian Leaders', China Christian Year Book 1936-1937; and draft lists prepared in 1957 for the use of Boorman's staff, with strong emphasis on church prominence rather than professional or general prominence, by Frank W. Price."
b. <b>71</b>	List B: "Additional Christians (var~ed sources) of some prominence 1900-1950"
b. <b>71</b>	List C: "Current Working List of Christians Prominent in China 1900-1950"
b. <b>71</b>	List D: "Further Work List Seeking Data and Comment"
b. <b>71</b>	List E: "Were the Following Persons Christians?"
b. <b>71</b>	Finder's Guide
b. <b>71</b> , f. <b>611</b>	Stage 2; List A drafts

Lists (continued)

b. <b>71,</b> f. <b>612</b>	Stage 2; List B drafts
b. <b>71</b> , f. <b>613</b>	Stage 2; List C drafts
b. <b>71</b> , f. <b>61</b> 4	Stage 2; List D drafts
b. <b>71</b> , f. <b>615</b>	Stage 2; List E drafts
b. <b>71</b> , f. <b>616</b>	Stage 2; Indices by geographical location, occupation or denomination
Not	tes
b. <b>71</b> , f. <b>617-618</b>	8 1/2" x 11" sheets
b. <b>71</b> , f. <b>619</b>	8″ x 12 1/2″
b. 72	3" x 5" sheets
b. 73, f. 620	51/2" x 81/2" sheets
Info	ormation Contributed by Others
b. 74, f. 621	Adams, Marie Anderson, Sidney
b. 74, f. 622	Barbour, George and Dorothy
b. 74, f. 623	Boorman, Howard (see also: Columbia University Research Project)
b. 74, f. 624	Brown, Margaret
b. 74, f. 624	Buck, J. Lossing
b. 74, f. 625	Carson, Arthur
b. 74, f. 625	Chang, C. W. and Mary
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>625</b>	Chester, Ruth
b. 74, f. 625	Chih Meng
b. 74, f. 625	Chu, Daniel
b. 74, f. 625	Chu, Yu-kuang
	Columbia University Research Project on Men and Politics in Modern China
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>626</b>	Correspondence B-L
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>627</b>	Correspondence N-W
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>628</b>	Lists of Roman Catholics
b. 74, f. 629	Lists of Buddhists
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>630</b>	Lists of Muslims (Moslems)
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>631</b>	Miscellaneous
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>632</b>	Coole, Arthur

### Information Contributed by Others (continued)

b. 74, f. 633	Copland, E. Bruce
b. 74, f. 633	Cross, Rowland
b. <b>74</b>	Cunningham, Gladys
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>63</b> 4	Ferguson, Mary
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>63</b> 4	Fitch, George
b. 74, f. 634	Fleming, John
b. 74, f. 634	Fugh, Philip
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>635</b>	Geng, George
b. 74, f. 636	Goodrich, Carrington
b. 74, f. 636	Greene, Ruth
b. <b>74</b> , f. <b>636</b>	Han Lih-wu
b. 74, f. 637	Hayward, Victor
b. <b>75</b> , f. 638	Ho, Franklin
b. <b>75</b> , f. 638	Hsia, C. L.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 638	Hsu, Moses
b. <b>75</b> , f. 638	Ing, (?)
b. 75, f. 639	Jarvis, Anna M.
b. 75, f. 639	Jones, Francis P.
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>639</b>	Jones, Tracey K.
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>639</b>	Jonson, Jonas
b. 75, f. 640	Lehmann, H.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 640	MacInnis, Donald
b. <b>75</b> , f. 640	Martenson, Ralph
b. <b>75</b> , f. 640	Matthews, Harold
b. <b>75</b> , f. 640	Merwin, Wallace C.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 640	Newman, (?)
b. <b>75</b> , f. 641	Oliver, Jay
b. <b>75</b> , f. 642	Pickens, Claude
b. <b>75</b> , f. 642	Price, Frank W.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 642	Roy, Andrew T.

### Information Contributed by Others (continued)

b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>64</b> 2	Sailer, Randolph
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>64</b> 2	Smith, Helen
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>643</b>	Sovik, Arne
b. <b>75</b> , f. 643	Stockwell, Olin
b. <b>75</b> , f. 643	Tewksbury, Gardner
b. <b>75</b> , f. 643	West, Charles C.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 643	Williams, M. O.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 643	Wittenbush, H. A.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 644	Zia, N. Z.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 645	Unidentified source
Bio	graphical Sketches of Chinese Christians
b. <b>75</b> , f. 646	Bau, T. C.
b. <b>75</b> , f. 646	Chan, Tsap-Ng
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>646</b>	Chao, T. C.
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>646</b>	Ch'en Wei Ping
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>646</b>	Cheng Ho-fu (Philip Lindel Tsen)
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>647</b>	Chiang I-chen (Newton Chiang)
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>647</b>	Fong Foo Sec
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>647</b>	Κοο, Τ. Ζ.
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>647</b>	Kung P'u-sheng
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>648</b>	Li Han-to (Handel Li)
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>648</b>	Lin Yutang
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>648</b>	Liu T'ing-fang (Timothy Lew)
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>648</b>	Lo Yun-yen
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>649</b>	Shu, Frank
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>649</b>	Song, C. T.
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>649</b>	Teng Shu-k'un (Kimber Den)
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>649</b>	Wei Cho-min
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>650</b>	Wu Ching-heiung
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>650</b>	Wu Yao-tsung (Y. T. Wu)

### Biographical Sketches of Chinese Christians (continued)

b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>650</b>	Yang Hsien-tung
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>650</b>	Yang, Martin M. C.
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>650</b>	Yang, Yung-ch'ing
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>651</b>	Yen Pao-hang
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>651</b>	Yu Hsin-ch'ing
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>651</b>	Yu Tinn Hugh
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>651</b>	Yui, David
b. <b>75</b> , f. <b>651</b>	Zia, H. L.

## Series V: Other notes and collected material, 1928-1978, undated

The material of Series V is divided into four sections:

3" x 5" format notes 5 1/2" x 8 1/2" format notes Mixed format notes and collected material Addendum

The first two sections are informally arranged with some topics noted. The third section is organized in two categories: material related to organizations and material arranged by topic.

	3″ x 5″ Format Notes	
b. <b>76</b>	Bibliographic references - topically arranged	
b. <b>77</b>	References and notes re. missionary motivation	
	5 1/2″ x 8 1/2″ Format Notes	
b. <b>78–81</b>	Pre-1950 topically arranged file (includes some material on China)	
b. 82-83	Re: U.S.S.R. and Communism	
b. 84, f. 654	Re: missions and history of Christianity	
b. 84, f. 655	Re: Christianity in America	
b. 84, f. 656	Re: religious liberty	
b. 84, f. 656	Miscellaneous	
	Mixed Format Notes and Collected Material	
	Related to Organizations	
b. <b>106,</b> f. <b>891</b>	Association of Professors of Missions	1952-1956 <i>,</i> undated
b. 106, f. 892	Association of Seminary Professors in the Practical Fields	1954-1955
b. <b>106</b> , f. <b>893</b>	Commission of the Churches on International Affairs	1957-1958, undated
b. 106, f. 894	Foundation for Theological Education in Southeast Asia	1967-1975
b. 106, f. 895	Hiram College	1966
	International Missionary Council (IMC)	
b. 106, f. 896	Department of Missionary Studies	1955-1958
b. 106, f. 897	Study of the Missionary Obligations of the Church	1952
b. 106, f. 898	Meetings - Jerusalem	1928
b. 106, f. 899	Meetings - Tambaram, Chennai (Madras)	1938-1939

Mixed Format Notes and Collected Material > Related to Organizations > International Missionary Council (IMC) (continued)

b. 106, f. 901	Meetings - Willingen, program material	1952
b. 106, f. 902-903	Meetings - Willingen, statements, reports	1952
b. <b>106</b> , f. <b>90</b> 4	Meetings - Willingen, Bates' notes	circa 1952
b. <b>106</b> , f. <b>905</b>	Meetings - Christian Leadership Consultation, Ibadan, Nigeria	1958
b. <b>106</b> , f. <b>906</b>	Related to Africa	1950-1954
b. <b>106</b> , f. <b>907</b>	Miscellaneous documents	
b. 107, f. 908	Lux Mundi Group	1961-1971
b. <b>107</b> , f. <b>909-916</b>	Missionary Research Library	1950-1978, undated
b. 107, f. 916a	Nanking Theological Seminary Board of Founders	1956-1958
	National Council of Churches of Christ USA (NCCCUSA)	
b. <b>108</b> , f. <b>917</b>	Joint Department of Religious Liberty	1950-1951 June
b. <b>108</b> , f. <b>918</b>	Joint Department of Religious Liberty	1951 September- December, no month
b. <b>108</b> , f. <b>919</b>	Joint Department of Religious Liberty	1952-1953
b. 108, f. 920-923	Department of Religious Liberty	1954-1957
b. 109, f. 924-929	Department of Religious Liberty	1958-1963 (and circa 1963)
b. 110, f. 930-931	Department of Religious Liberty	1964, undated
b. <b>110</b> , f. 932	Committee on Religion and Public Education	1954-1963
b. 110, f. 933-936	Park Avenue Christian Church	1959-1977
b. 111, f. 937	Park Avenue Christian Church	1978, undated
b. 111, f. 938	Union Theological Seminary	1951-1971 <i>,</i> undated
b. 111, f. 939-940	United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia (UBCHEA) and antecedent bodies	1953-1978 <i>,</i> undated
b. 111, f. 941	United Christian Missionary Society	1945-1975 <i>,</i> undated
Тор	ics	
b. <b>112</b> , f. <b>942</b>	Africa	
b. <b>112</b> , f. <b>943</b>	African Orthodox Church	
b. <b>112</b> , f. <b>944</b>	American culture and history	
b. 112, f. 945	Argentina	

#### Mixed Format Notes and Collected Material > Topics (continued)

b. 112, f. 946	Asia - general
b. 112, f. 947	Church and State - general
b. <b>112</b> , f. <b>948</b>	Church and State - International Missionary Council Tambarum 1938 Conference
b. 112, f. 949	Colombia
b. 112, f. 950	Communism and the U.S.S.R. Bibliographies, handwritten notes
b. 112, f. 951	Communism and the U.S.S.R. Papers
b. 112, f. 952	Communism and the U.S.S.R. Typescript notes, documents
b. 112, f. 953	European history
b. 112, f. 954	Fascism
b. 112, f. 955b. 113, f. 956-957	Hiking
b. 113, f. 958	India
b. 113, f. 959-960	Information about miscellaneous individuals
b. 113, f. 961	Indonesia
b. 113, f. 962	Japan - handwritten notes
b. 113, f. 963	Japan - typescript notes and documents, re: Sino-Japanese conflict
b. 113, f. 964	Japan - typescript notes and documents, miscellaneous
b. 113, f. 965	Japan - printed material
b. 113, f. 966	Kagawa, Toyohiko
b. 113, f. 967	Korea
b. 113, f. 968	Latourette, Kenneth Scott
b. 114, f. 969	Middle East
b. 114, f. 970	Missions bibliography
b. 114, f. 971	Missions theory - handwritten notes
b. 114, f. 972	Missions theory - typescript notes
b. 114, f. 973	Missions theory - typescript papers and documents
b. 114, f. 974	Missions theory - printed material
b. 114, f. 975	Race
b. 114, f. 976	Religious liberty - handwritten notes
b. 114, f. 977-978	Religious liberty - typescript notes and documents

#### Mixed Format Notes and Collected Material > Topics (continued)

b. 114, f. 979-980	Religious liberty - printed material
b. 115, f. 981-983	Religious liberty - printed material
b. 115, f. 984	Roman Catholic Church and missions
b. 115, f. 985-986	Sermon notes and prayers
b. <b>115</b> , f. <b>987</b>	South America
b. <b>115</b> , f. <b>988</b>	South Pacific
b. <b>115</b> , f. 989	Taiwan
b. <b>115</b> , f. <b>990</b>	Theological education
b. 115, f. 991	Theology
b. 115, f. 992	United Nations
Add	endum
b. <b>132</b> , f. 1	Maps of China
b. 132, f. 2	Hand-drawn maps of China; political divisions in different eras
b. 132, f. 3	Maps of Nanjing (Nanking)
b. <b>132</b> , f. 4	Maps of Shanghai, Taipei
b. <b>132</b> , f. 5	Pamphlet and map: "Operations of Indian Expeditionary Force "D" 1914-1917" 1917
b. 132, f. 6	Contract between the University of Nanking and Chen Yu-Meng 1925
b. 132, f. 7	Chinese language notes Chinese

# Series VI: Writings, 1924-1975, undated

The writings of Series VI are divided into five sections:

Articles, pamphlets, papers - arranged alphabetically by title Book reviews - arranged chronologically Reports and memoranda from China - arranged chronologically Sermons, addresses, interviews - arranged chronologically Related to major works - arranged alphabetically by title with appropriate subheadings

	Articles, Pamphlets, Papers	
b. 85, f. 659	"Africa in Christian Perspective"	undated
b. 85, f. 659	"Africa Tests Christian Understanding," Christianity and Crisis	1959 April
b. 85, f. 659	"Africa: Unrecognized Diversity," Christianity and Crisis	1958 March
b. 85, f. 659	"Aftermath of Registration of Refugees at the University, 26 December 1937	″ 1938 January
b. 85, f. 659	"An American in China," Virginia Quarterly Review	1955
b. 85, f. 659	"Angola: A Candle in the Gloom of Violence"	undated
b. 85, f. 659	"Asia: Its Needs and Possibilities"	undated
b. 85, f. 659	"Authority in the New Testament"	1924 June
b. 85, f. 660	"Barometer of the Far East," Christianity and Crisis	1956 May
b. 85, f. 660	"Beyond American Comforts and Tariffs" Christianity and Crisis	1970 October
b. 85, f. 661	"A Call to Action," National Christian Council Review	1952 November
b. 85, f. 661	"Candles Flicker in South Africa"	undated
b. 85, f. 661	"Candles in the Chasms"	undated
b. 85, f. 661	"China," in The Prospects of Christianity Through out the World	1963
b. 85, f. 661	"China"	undated
b. <b>85</b>	"China: A Plea for Courage and Light, Christianity and Crisis	1957 March
b. <b>85</b>	"China and Her Asian Neighbors," Christianity and Crisis	1966 June
b. <b>85</b>	"China and International Communism," Christianity and Crisis	1963 February
b. <b>85</b>	"China and Vietnam," Christianity and Crisis	1967 June
b. <b>85</b>	"China as a Model for Asian Revolutions: and Perhaps for African and Latin American as Well"	undated
b. 85, f. 662	"China Cannot Be Ignored," Christianity and Crisis	1960 October
b. <b>85</b>	"China Consultation 1962," N.C.C.C., U.S.A.	1962
b. <b>85</b>	"China in a New Context," Christianity and Crisis	1972 August
b. <b>85</b>	"China in Conflict: Soothsayer's Quandary," Christianity and Crisis	1967 February

b. 85, f. 663	"China is Just Too Large to Ignore"	undated
b. 85	"China is Still There," Christianity and Crisis	1968 March
b. 85	"The China Issues in Perspective"	1961 October
b. 85	"A China Miscellany" (bibliography), Missionary Research Library	1971 December
b. 85	"China 1958: The Manufacture of a Society," Christianity and Crisis	1959 January
b. 85	"The China Question: A Plea for Courage and Light"	undated
b. 85	"The China Question: Who Settled What?"	late 1960s
b. 85, f. 666	"China: Revolution Against Revolution?," Christianity and Crisis	1967 October
b. 85	"China: The Human Scene," Christianity and Crisis	1965 April
b. 85	"The China Vote," Christianity and Crisis	1962 January
b. <b>85,</b> f. <b>665</b>	"The Chinese Church and the World Church," Bulletin of the International Missionary Council	1945 November
b. 86, f. 671	Commentary on "Europe's Crisis and America's Dilemma" by K. W. Thompson, <i>Christianity and Crisis</i>	1957 January
b.86	"Communism and the Christian Response" (Bibliography), <i>Missionary</i> Research Library	1956 August
b. <b>86</b>	"Confound Their Politics, Frustrate Their Knavish Tricks," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i>	1957 November
b. 86	"Confucian Ethics"	undated
b. 86	"Congo Disciples: A Visitor's Reflections"	1954 April
b. 86	"Contact with Churches in China, Christianity and Crisis	1957 May
b. 86, f. 672	"Contemporary American Opinion of the Monroe Doctrine"	1926
b. 86	"Contemporary Challenges to Freedom," Christianity and Crisis	1958 July
b. 86	"The Continuing Sino-Soviet Dispute," Christianity and Crisis	1963 September
b. 86	"The Crisis of Missions in China and Southeastern Asia," <i>Christian World Facts</i>	1942 February
b. <b>86</b>	"Crop Investigation in the Nanking Area and Sundry Economic Data" (Report prepared for the Nanking International Relief Committee)	1938 October
b. 86	"Crude Sabotage of Considered Policy: Aid to Yugoslavia and Poland," Christianity and Crisis	undated
b. 86	"A Cup of Cold Orange Juice," Christianity and Crisis	1957 October

b. 86	"Dangerous Thoughts Regarding China (or, American Attitudes Toward China)"	undated
b. 86	"Day After Tomorrow in the Orient," World Call	1942 May
b. 86	"Democracy in Japan"	undated
b. <b>86</b>	"Development of MinistersA Major Issue in Missions"	undated
b. <b>86,</b> f. <b>67</b> 4	"Diagnosis of the Present Disorder - Regional Statement for Asia," W.C.C.	1947 September
b. <b>86</b>	"The Disciple Commitment to Church Union"	undated
b. <b>86</b>	"Disciples Missions in the Ecumenical Framework"	1954 August
b. 86	"Distressed China - The Legacy of War," World Call	1946 November
b. 86	"Divided China," Christianity and Crisis	1946 September
b. 86, f. 675	"Does Tibet Matter?" Christianity and Crisis	1959 May
b. 86	"The Drama Presses On" (Published in Shanghai Evening Post and Mercury)	1936 October
b. 86	"Drama Near Tragedy" (leading editorial in <i>Shanghai Evening Post</i> and <i>Mercury</i> )	1936 October
b. 86, f. 676	"'East' and 'West' at Evanston," Christianity and Crisis	1954 November
b. 86	"East Asia: A Christian Reminder," Christianity and Crisis	1951 January
b. <b>86</b>	"Education and Equalitarian Drives in the Chinese 'Cultural Revolution"	undated
b. 86 b. 86	"Education and Equalitarian Drives in the Chinese 'Cultural Revolution"" "The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"	undated undated
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
b. 86	"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"	undated
b. 86 b. 85, f. 665	"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China" "The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i>	undated 1970 February
b. 86 b. 85, f. 665 b. 85	"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China" "The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i> "The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i>	undated 1970 February 1969 July
b. 86 b. 85, f. 665 b. 85 b. 85	"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China" "The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i> "The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i> "The Chinese Role in International Communism"	undated 1970 February 1969 July undated
b. 86 b. 85, f. 665 b. 85 b. 85 b. 85, f. 666	<ul> <li>"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"</li> <li>"The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Role in International Communism"</li> <li>"The Chinese Sector, 1964," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese State and Religion, with Particular Reference to Christianity,</li> </ul>	undated 1970 February 1969 July undated 1964 February
b. 86 b. 85, f. 665 b. 85 b. 85 b. 85, f. 666 b. 85	<ul> <li>"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"</li> <li>"The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Role in International Communism"</li> <li>"The Chinese Sector, 1964," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese State and Religion, with Particular Reference to Christianity, 1840-1949" (Columbia University Seminar on Modern East Asia)</li> </ul>	undated 1970 February 1969 July undated 1964 February 1967 November
<ul> <li>b. 86</li> <li>b. 85, f. 665</li> <li>b. 85</li> <li>b. 85, f. 666</li> <li>b. 85, f. 667</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"</li> <li>"The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Role in International Communism"</li> <li>"The Chinese Sector, 1964," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese State and Religion, with Particular Reference to Christianity, 1840-1949" (Columbia University Seminar on Modern East Asia)</li> <li>"The Christian Churches in China Today"</li> </ul>	undated 1970 February 1969 July undated 1964 February 1967 November
<ul> <li>b. 86</li> <li>b. 85, f. 665</li> <li>b. 85</li> <li>b. 85, f. 666</li> <li>b. 85, f. 667</li> <li>b. 85</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"</li> <li>"The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i></li> <li>"The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i></li> <li>"The Chinese Role in International Communism"</li> <li>"The Chinese Sector, 1964," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i></li> <li>"The Chinese State and Religion, with Particular Reference to Christianity, 1840-1949" (Columbia University Seminar on Modern East Asia)</li> <li>"The Christian Churches in China Today"</li> <li>"Christian Concern for Black Africa," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i></li> </ul>	undated 1970 February 1969 July undated 1964 February 1967 November 1965 January 1953 July
<ul> <li>b. 86</li> <li>b. 85, f. 665</li> <li>b. 85</li> <li>b. 85, f. 666</li> <li>b. 85, f. 667</li> <li>b. 85, f. 667</li> <li>b. 85</li> <li>b. 85</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"</li> <li>"The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Role in International Communism"</li> <li>"The Chinese Sector, 1964," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese State and Religion, with Particular Reference to Christianity, 1840-1949" (Columbia University Seminar on Modern East Asia)</li> <li>"The Christian Churches in China Today"</li> <li>"Christian Concern for Black Africa," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"Christian Concerns in African Politics," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"Christian Historian, Doer of Christian History. In Memory of Kenneth Scott</li> </ul>	undated 1970 February 1969 July undated 1964 February 1967 November 1965 January 1953 July 1958 June
<ul> <li>b. 86</li> <li>b. 85, f. 665</li> <li>b. 85</li> <li>b. 85, f. 666</li> <li>b. 85, f. 667</li> <li>b. 85</li> <li>b. 85</li> <li>b. 85</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>"The Effects of Western Contacts upon the Political Life of China"</li> <li>"The Chinese Factor in World Rivalries," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Revolution: Phase 1969," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese Role in International Communism"</li> <li>"The Chinese Sector, 1964," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"The Chinese State and Religion, with Particular Reference to Christianity, 1840-1949" (Columbia University Seminar on Modern East Asia)</li> <li>"The Christian Churches in China Today"</li> <li>"Christian Concern for Black Africa," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"Christian Concerns in African Politics," Christianity and Crisis</li> <li>"Christian Historian, Doer of Christian History. In Memory of Kenneth Scott Latourette 1884-1968," International Review of Missions</li> </ul>	undated 1970 February 1969 July undated 1964 February 1967 November 1965 January 1953 July 1958 June 1969

b. 132, f. 8	"The Christian Movement in China Meets the Tests of War"	1941
b. <b>85,</b> f. 667	"The Christian Movement in China: Troubled Glory, Anxious Faith," Motive	1942 November
b. <b>85</b>	"Christian Prospects in China"	1949 April
b. 85	"Christian Service in War Torn China"	undated
b. 85	"Christian Work in China: The Economic and Political Background"	1947 October
b. <b>85</b>	"Christian Youth and Today's World," World Call	1942 May
b. 85, f. 668	"Christianity and Social-Economic Issues" (Lectures given at National Student Secretaries Reading Party at Hangzhou (Hangchow))	1937 January
b. 85	"Christianity in China Today," World Call	1941 July-August
b. 85	"Christianity in the Peoples' Republic of China"	undated
b. <b>85</b>	"Christianity in the People's RepublicA Time for Study to Understand"	undated
b. 85	"A Christian's Select Bibliography on Communism," <i>Missionary Research Library</i>	1961 November
b. 85, f. 669	"Church and State," in Twentieth Century Encyclopedia of Religious Knowledge	circa 1951- 1953
b. 85	"The Church in China: Current Phase," Christianity and Crisis	1943 September
b. <b>85</b>	"The Church in China in the Twentieth Century"	circa 1967
b. 86, f. 670	"The Church Must Still Help China," The Christian Century	1942 April
b. 85	"Church, State and Citizen in Italy," Christianity and Crisis	1958 May
b. 85	"Churches and Christians in China, 1950-1967: Fragments of Understanding," Pacific Affairs	1968
b. 85	"The Churches and the United Nations," Christianity and Crisis	1952 February
b. <b>85</b>	"The Churches and the United Nations"	undated
b. <b>132</b> , f. <b>9</b>	"A Delegation of Japanese Christians in China"	undated
b. 86, f. 676	"The Effort and the Measure of Success Attained By Missions in Attempting to Adapt Their Work to Chinese Culture and Society"	1960 April
b. 86	"Evangelism and Missions at Evanston"	1954 November
b. 86	"The Experience of Liberation: A Voice from Nanking," World Call	1946 March
b. 86	"Explanatory Comment on Luther Shao's Accusation and 'Self-Criticism"	1951
b. 86, f. 677	"Eyes on the Orient" series for World Call	1941-1945, undated
b. 86, f. 678	"The Far East and Missionary Planning," International Review of Missions	undated
b. <b>86</b>	"The Far East Draws Near" (outline)	undated

b. <b>86</b>	"The Far East from Within/Oriental Views of the Far East/Japanese Rule in Occupied Territories"	undated
b.86	"The Far East: Test of Western Capacity for Brotherhood," <i>Christianity and Crisis</i>	1942 October
b. 86	"Far Eastern Missions in Crisis"	undated
b. 86	"The Fate of Christianity in China," Christianity and Crisis	1968 May
b. 86, f. 679	"Food for China?" Christianity and Crisis	1961 April
b. 86	"Fumbling for a China Policy," Commonweal (?)	1968
b. 86	"Ghana in Christian Focus"	undated
b. 86	"Half of Humanity: Far Eastern Peoples and Problems," <i>The Church Peace</i> <i>Union</i>	1942
b. 86, f. 680	"Heard in the Gates," <i>Shane Quarterly</i> (lectures delivered at Butler University)	1951 April
b. 86	"How Protestantism Began in Latin America"	undated
b. 86	"How Will the War End for Japan?" Far Eastern Survey	1942 July
b. <b>86</b>	"International Missionary Council," in <i>Twentieth Century Encyclopedia of</i> Religious Knowledge	circa 1951-1953
b. 86	"The International Scene: Good Society or Class Struggle"	undated
b. 86	"Is There a New Russian Since Stalin? Christianity and Crisis	1957 November
b. 86 b. 86	"Is There a New Russian Since Stalin? <i>Christianity and Crisis</i> "Is There an Africa?"	1957 November undated
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
b. <b>86</b>	"Is There an Africa?"	undated
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" <u>"Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November</u> <u>1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State</u>	undated 1958
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681 b. 87, f. 682	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" "Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November 1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State Department and special groups. November, 1937	undated 1958 undated
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681 b. 87, f. 682 b. 87	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" "Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November 1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State Department and special groups. November, 1937 "Japan and China: A War of Minds," Pacific Affairs	undated 1958 undated 1937 September
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681 b. 87, f. 682 b. 87 b. 87	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" "Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November 1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State Department and special groups. November, 1937 "Japan and China: A War of Minds," Pacific Affairs "The Japanese Treaty Settlement," Christianity and Crisis	undated 1958 undated 1937 September 1950?
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681 b. 87, f. 682 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" "Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November 1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State Department and special groups. November, 1937 "Japan and China: A War of Minds," Pacific Affairs "The Japanese Treaty Settlement," Christianity and Crisis "Japan's Great Adventure"	undated 1958 undated 1937 September 1950? 1937 November
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681 b. 87, f. 682 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87, f. 683	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" "Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November 1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State Department and special groups. November, 1937 "Japan and China: A War of Minds," Pacific Affairs "The Japanese Treaty Settlement," Christianity and Crisis "Japan's Great Adventure" "Kenneth Scott Latourette: Major Informant on China"	undated 1958 undated 1937 September 1950? 1937 November 1969
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681 b. 87, f. 682 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87, f. 683 b. 87	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" "Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November 1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State Department and special groups. November, 1937 "Japan and China: A War of Minds," Pacific Affairs "The Japanese Treaty Settlement," Christianity and Crisis "Japan's Great Adventure" "Kenneth Scott Latourette: Major Informant on China"	undated 1958 undated 1937 September 1950? 1937 November 1969 undated
b. 86 b. 87, f. 681 b. 87, f. 682 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87 b. 87	"Is There an Africa?" "The Issues in Church Relationships," N.C.C.C., U.S.A. "Japan" "Japan"s Great Adventure" (8 pages). Article written by Bates in November 1937 for the New York Times. Rejected as too heavy, but used in State Department and special groups. November, 1937 "Japan and China: A War of Minds," Pacific Affairs "The Japanese Treaty Settlement," Christianity and Crisis "Japan's Great Adventure" "Kenneth Scott Latourette: Major Informant on China" "Kuomintang" in Encyclopedia for Social Science "League of Nations, The Churches and the" in Twentieth Century Encyclopedia of Religious Knowledge	undated 1958 undated 1937 September 1950? 1937 November 1969 undated undated

b. 87	Letter to the editor of <i>Evening Post</i>	1939 December
b. <b>132</b> , f. <b>10</b>	"Lights and Shadows in Nanking"	1927
b. <b>87</b>	"Love Must Tool Up for the Emergency"	1942 March
b. 87	"Mao the Forthright Enigma," Christianity and Crisis	1970 April
b. 87	"Mao Victor or Victim? Which Mao?" Christianity and Crisis	1969 January
b. <b>87</b> , f. <b>685</b>	"The Marxian Interpretation of History"	undated
b. <b>87</b>	"Materials on Problems of State and Church in the Far East"	1939
b. <b>87</b>	"Memorandum for Robert F. Smylie"	1971 June
b. 87	"Missionary" in World Book Encyclopedia	1976
b. 87	"A Missionary Journey War Model 1940"	1940
b. 87, f. 686	"Missions in Far Eastern Cultural Relations" Institute of Pacific Relations	1942
b. 87, f. 687	"Missions in the Far Eastern War," The Christian Evangelist	1942 February
b. 87	"Missions in the Whole Life of the Church"	1942 January
b. 87	"Missions in War," The United Christian Missionary Society	undated
b. <b>87</b>	"Missions in War Emergency," World Call	1942 February
b. <b>87</b>	"Moral Demands of Collective Security," Christianity and Crisis	1952 November
b. 87	"Mr. Nehru's Himalayan Blunder," Christianity and Crisis	1962 December
b. 87, f. 688	"The Nanking Population: Employment, Earnings and Expenditures" (survey prepared for the Nanking International Relief Committee)	1939
b. 87	"The Narcotic Problem," The Chinese Recorder	1940 October
b. 87	"Narcotics in Nanking," Shanghai Evening Post and Mercury	1939 November
b. 87, f. 689	"The National Government," China Christian Year Book	1931
b. 87	"The National Government," China Christian Year Book	1932-1933
b. 87, f. 690	National/Public/Social Affairs series from China Mission News Letter April 5, 1936 "National Affairs" (2 pages) May, 1936 "National Affairs" (2 pages) June, 1936 "National Affairs" (2 pages) July 10, 1936 "National Affairs" (2 pages) September 19, 1936 "National Affairs" (2 pages) October 1936 "National Affairs" (2 pages) November 1936 "National Affairs" December 1936 "National Affairs" February 1937 "National Affairs" April 1937 "National Affairs" June 6, 1937 "National Affairs" August 1937 "National Affairs"	1935-1950, undated

	October 1, 1937 "National Affairs" (2 pages) November 10, 1937 "National Affairs" (2 pages) December 1937 "National Affairs" (2 pages) June 14, 1938 "Public Affairs" (2 pages) November 1938 "Public Affairs" (2 pages) See also: China Mission News Letter, Record Group 31	
b. 87, f. 691	"Neededa Strong African Ministry," World Call	1954 June
b. 87	"New Light in South Africa"	undated
b. <b>87</b>	"Not One China or Two, But Six," Christianity and Crisis	1955 May
b. <b>87</b>	"Notes on Technical Method in Christian Publication Programs"	undated
b. 87	"Notes on the Choice of Institutions for Training U.C.M.S. Candidates for Foreign Service, with Especial Reference to Disciple Seminaries"	1945 February
b. 87, f. 692	"Old China and New Militarism," World Call	1937 May
b. 87	"O'Neill vs. Blanshard: Review of Catholicism and American Freedom," Christianity and Crisis	1952 June
b. <b>87</b>	"An Open Letter on the Narcotic Problem," Shanghai Evening Post	1938 November
b. <b>87</b>	"The Orient is - Folks"	1944 July
b. <b>87</b>	"Our Commitment to Church Union," The Christian Evangelist	1956 May
b. <b>87</b>	"Out of This World? But We Can't Get There"	undated
b. <b>87</b>	"The Outlook for Christianity in China"	1949 April
b. 87, f. 693	"Peking's Understanding of the World and Its Destiny"	1965 September
b. <b>87</b>	"Persecution and Toleration" in Encyclopedia Americana	1964 February
b. 87	"Policy Crisis in Catholic Colombia," The Christian Century	1954 June
b. <b>87</b>	"PRCUSAUSSR," Christianity and Crisis	1971 May
b. 87	"Problems of Religious Liberty: Mid-Century Phases"	1966
b. 132, f. 11	"Public Affairs"	1940
b. 88, f. 694	"Queries on U.S. Policy in South and East Asia," Christianity and Crisis	1955 October
b. 88	"Rays of Hope in South Africa," Christianity and Crisis	1962 April
b. 88	"Realism in the United Nations," Christianity and Crisis	1956 January
b. 88	"Recent Literature in Missions," The Chaplain	1959 February
b. 88	"Reconstruction and Christian Opportunity"	1943 November
b. 88	"Relief and Rehabilitation in China," The Christian Evangelist	1945 January
b. 88, f. 695	"Religious Liberty" in <i>Twentieth Century Encyclopedia of Religious</i> Knowledge	circa 1951-1953

b. 88	"Religious Liberty" in Encyclopedia Americana	1963
b. 88	"Religious Liberty - Church and State," Missionary Research Library	1959 July
b. 88	"Religious Liberty in China," International Review of Missions	1946
b. 88	"Religious Liberty: Recent Phases of the Problem"	undated
b. 88	"Religious Liberty: The Roman Catholic Factor," Pulpit Digest	1959 November
b. 88, f. 696	"The Remaking of China"	circa 1933
b. 88	"Report from Outer Space: China," Christianity and Crisis	1963 April
b. 88	"The Revolution in China, 1966 Model," Christianity and Crisis	1966 October
b. 88	"The Rise of Modern Europe"	undated
b. 88, f. 697	"The Secret of Chinese Resistance"	undated
b. 88	"A Select List of Books on Religious Liberty, Church and State (published 1945-1959)"	undated
b. 88	"The Sino-Soviet Dispute: Current Phase"	undated
b. 88, f. 698	"Some Christian Concern in African Politics"	undated
b. 88	"Some Problems of African Christians," Christianity and Crisis	1954 January
b. 88	"Some Recent Contributions in Thought and Effort on Behalf of Religious Liberty"	undated
b. 88	"Some Reflections on 1925 and 1975 and the Years Between"	1975
b. 88	"Some Thoughts on India and Nehru"	undated
b. 88	"Statement on Religious Freedom"	1943 July
b. 88	"Straits That Are Desperate"	undated
b. 88	"The Strength of Mao's Power," Christianity and Crisis	1969 February
b. 88	"Study in the World Christian Mission," Union Seminary Quarterly Review	1951 January
b. 88, f. 699	"Suez and Colonialism," Christianity and Crisis	1956 October
b. 88	"Suggestions for the Settlement of Peace in the Far East"	1943 June
b. 88	"The Sun Will Rise Again in the East," World Call	1942 August
b. 88	"Survey of the Training of the Ministry in Africa," International Missionary Council	1954
b. 88	"Survey of the Training of the Ministry in Africa," Daystar	1954 October
b. 88, f. 700	"Symposium on China: Toward Understanding China and the Chinese People," N.C.C.C., U.S.A.	1968

b. 88	"That Other Congress - the One in Moscow"	undated
b. 88	"Toward the Understanding of Chinese Politics 1931-1932," Pacific Affairs	1932
b. 88	"Toynbee as Historian," Christianity and Crisis	1955 March
b. 88, f. 702	"The Training of Christian Ministers in Non-British Africa," International Review of Missions	1954
b. 88	"Traitors to Whom?" Christianity and Crisis	1957 March
b. 88	"Treason to the Rulers or to the People?"	undated
b. 88	"Two Decades of Revolutionary China," Christianity and Crisis	1969 October
b. <b>89</b> , f. 703	"The United States and China. Stalin and J. McCarthy Are Gone"	1968 May
b. 89	"Vietnam, Geneva and China"	undated
b. <b>89</b> , f. <b>70</b> 4	"A Voluntary Group Under Communist Rule: The Christians" (Columbia University Seminar on Modern East Asia)	1961 October
b. <b>89</b> , f. <b>705</b>	"Wanted for African Export: Durable Saints," <i>Union Seminary Quarterly Review</i>	1954 March
b. <b>89</b>	"The War and Missions," World Call	1941 October
b. <b>89</b>	"War Poverty: Nanking"	circa 1940
b. <b>89</b>	"War Relief in Nanking"	1933 April
b. <b>89</b>	"Wartime Achievements of the Christian Church in China," Christian Laymen	1942 February
b. <b>89</b>	"What About China?" World Call	1944 May
b. <b>89</b>	"What Are Missionaries Really Doing?"	undated
b. <b>89</b>	"What Is the Future of the Missionary Program in China?"	1925-1928?
b. <b>89</b>	"What Happened in Madras"	circa 1938
b. 89, f. 706	"What's Happening in China?" Christianity and Crisis	1971 February
b. <b>89</b>	"What's the Score in China's Cultural Revolution?"	1968 September
b. <b>89</b>	"Who and What Is China?"	undated
b. <b>89</b>	"Why Not an Embassy at the Vatican?"	undated
b. <b>89</b>	"The World and Formosa," Christianity and Crisis	1953 March
b. <b>89</b>	"World Council as Seen at Evanston," Christianity and Crisis	1954 September
b. <b>89</b>	"World Mission Today and its Recent Literature," The Chaplain	1959 April
b. <b>89,</b> f. 707	"The Yale-in-China Association: Forty Years in the Life of China"	undated
b. <b>89</b>	"You Cannot Fool All of the People'It's True in China, Too"	undated
b. <b>89</b>	"The Younger Churches: Ghana 1957-58," The Christian Evangelist	1958 March

b. 89, f. 708-709	Fragments / Unidentified	
b. 132, f. 12	Untitled report	circa 1939
	Book Reviews	
b. 89, f. 710-716	By Miner Searle Bates	1928-1974, undated
	Reports and Memoranda from China	
b. 90, f. 717	Various	1927, 1928
b. 90, f. 718	Including the following: Memorandum on Policy Toward Japan (1935); Report on Present Day Japan (1936) "Memorandum on Policy Toward Japan", November 1935 "Please Destroy This Sheet After Making" - Report on Present Day Japan written by Bates with particular reference to policy toward China; based on a visit of Bates to Japan in early 1936 "Suggestions on Policy Toward Japan", April 10, 1936 "Notes on the Diplomatic Situation as of Oct. 1, 1936" "Explanatory Note to Accompany 'Memorandum on Policy toward Japan", Late 1936	1935, 1936
b. 90, f. 719	<ul> <li>Including: Report on Japan (1937)</li> <li>"Cautious summary report", Summary on army propaganda in Japanese schools, Spring 1937</li> <li>"Notes by Bates during December 1937", Christmas Eve, 1937</li> <li>"Friendly Caution - And a Little Information", Report on Japan by Bates, 1937</li> <li>"Summary Report of a Visit to Japan", 1937</li> <li>"Statement by Bates Regarding Losses due to Depredations of Japanese Soldiers, Nanking, Dec. 18, 1937 - Jan. 11, 1938"</li> <li>"Nanking Outrages", Letter from Bates to friends regarding massacre, January 10, 1938</li> <li>"Japanese Propaganda in the Mirror of Events", January 1938</li> <li>"Conjectural Notes and Few Facts on Nanking Economics", March 1, 1938</li> <li>"Materials Regarding Problem Of Claims for the University of Nanking", March 26, 1938</li> <li>"Pseudo-Economic Notes from Nanking", March 31, 1938</li> <li>"Nanking Notes (mostly economic)", July 1, 1938</li> <li>"An Open Letter: On the Narcotic Problem, written by Bates", November 22, 1938</li> <li>"Preliminary Report on Christian Work in Nanking", Winter 1938</li> <li>"Drugs" a report by Bates on the drug situation in Nanking</li> </ul>	1937-1938
b. 90, f. 720	Various	1939-1941, undated
	Sermons, Addresses, Interviews	
b. 90, f. 722-734	Sermons, Addresses, Interviews See also: <u>Two folders</u> of fragmentary sermon notes and prayers in Series V Related to Major Works	1925-1974, n.d.
b. <b>91</b> , f. <b>735</b>	"The Establishment of the Centralized Empire in China, 221-87 B.C." (Ph.D. Dissertation, Yale, 1935): Abstracts	

#### Related to Major Works (continued)

b. 91, f. 736	Dissertation - Chinese Language Material, notes	
	Religious Liberty: An Inquiry (1945)	
b. 91, f. 737	Correspondence	1945-1946
b. 91, f. 738	Correspondence	1947-1970
b. 91, f. 739	Publicity and distribution	1944-1950
b. 91, f. 740	Reviews	1945
b. 91, f. 741	Reviews	1946
b. 92, f. 742	Reviews	1947-1948, undated

*China in Change: An Approach to Understanding* (Miner Searle Bates, editor, 1969)

b. 92, f. 743	Correspondence	1967-1968
b. <b>92</b> , f. <b>744</b>	First draft	1968
b. 92, f. 745	Final draft	1969
b. <b>92</b> , f. <b>746</b>	Re: Chapter 1, by H. Boorman	1967-1968
b. 92, f. 747	Re: Chapter 2, by C. M. Wilbur	1967-1968
b. 92, f. 748	Re: Chapter 3, by T. Chen	1967
b. 92, f. 749	Re: Chapter 4, by C. Buss	1967-1968
b. 92, f. 750	Re: Chapter 5, by W. C. Merwin	
b. 92, f. 751	Re: Chapter 6, by E. B. Copland	undated
b. 93, f. 752	Re: Conclusion	undated
C in	The Theology of American Missionaries in China" (Paper presented at 1972 uernavaca Conference on American Missionaries in China and America and icluded as chapter in <i>The Missionary Enterprise in China and America</i> , 1974, dited by John K. Fairbank)	
b. 93, f. 753	Handwritten drafts	undated
b. <b>93</b> , f. <b>75</b> 4	Typescript draft of Cuernavaca paper	undated
b. <b>93</b> , f. <b>755</b>	Paper as presented at Cuernavaca	1972
b. 93, f. 756	Drafts for chapter in Fairbank book	1972-1973

# Series VII: Course-related materials, 1942-1965, undated

The materials of Series VII are arranged by course title with the additional subheadings as required.

b. 94, f. 757	Christian Ethics 394/494: Christianity and Communism: Handouts, exams	1952-1965, undated
b. 94, f. 758	Christian Ethics 394/494: Bates' notes	undated
b. 94, f. 759	Christian Ethics 394/494: Source materials, bibliographies	1950-1963, undated
b. 94, f. 760	Missions 221: The World Christian Mission in History, to 1800	1952-1963, undated
b. 94, f. 761	Missions 222: The World Christian Mission in History, 1800 to present	1951-1958 <i>,</i> undated
b. 94, f. 762	Missions 230: Missions and the Younger Churches Today	1957-1959
b. 94, f. 763	Missions 231/232: The Christian Church and World Issues: Handouts	1955-1962 <i>,</i> undated
b. 94, f. 764	Missions 231/232: Bates' notes	undated
b. 94, f. 765-766	Missions 231/232: Source materials	1948-1964 <i>,</i> undated
b. 95, f. 767	Missions 238 (Church and Community 206): Christianity in Social Change and Cultural Conflict	1954
b. 95, f. 768	Missions 258: Church and State in Latin America	1952
b. 95, f. 769		
	Missions 441: Principles and Practice of the World Mission of Christianity: Handouts	1957-1959
b. 95, f. 770		1957-1959 undated
	Handouts	
b. <b>95</b> , f. <b>770</b>	Handouts Missions 441: Bates' notes	undated 1942-1956,
b. 95, f. 770 b. 95, f. 771	Handouts Missions 441: Bates' notes Missions 441: Source materials	undated 1942-1956, undated 1958, 1962,
b. 95, f. 770 b. 95, f. 771 b. 95, f. 772	Handouts Missions 441: Bates' notes Missions 441: Source materials Missions 446: The Life and Work of the Younger Churches: Handouts	undated 1942-1956, undated 1958, 1962, undated
b. 95, f. 770 b. 95, f. 771 b. 95, f. 772 b. 95, f. 772	Handouts         Missions 441: Bates' notes         Missions 441: Source materials         Missions 446: The Life and Work of the Younger Churches: Handouts         Missions 446: Bates' notes	undated 1942-1956, undated 1958, 1962, undated undated 1957-1964,
<ul> <li>b. 95, f. 770</li> <li>b. 95, f. 771</li> <li>b. 95, f. 772</li> <li>b. 95, f. 772</li> <li>b. 95, f. 773</li> </ul>	Handouts         Missions 441: Bates' notes         Missions 441: Source materials         Missions 446: The Life and Work of the Younger Churches: Handouts         Missions 446: Bates' notes         Missions 446: Source materials	undated 1942-1956, undated 1958, 1962, undated undated 1957-1964, undated 1954-1964,
<ul> <li>b. 95, f. 770</li> <li>b. 95, f. 771</li> <li>b. 95, f. 772</li> <li>b. 95, f. 772</li> <li>b. 95, f. 773</li> <li>b. 95, f. 774-776</li> </ul>	HandoutsMissions 441: Bates' notesMissions 441: Source materialsMissions 446: The Life and Work of the Younger Churches: HandoutsMissions 446: Bates' notesMissions 446: Source materialsTheology 251/351: The World and the Church: Handouts	undated 1942-1956, undated 1958, 1962, undated undated 1957-1964, undated 1954-1964, undated 1956-1963,

b. 96, f. 781	Theology 251/351: Source material	1956-1959
b. 96, f. 782	Other courses at Union Theological Seminary	1950-1952 <i>,</i> undated
b. 96, f. 783-784	Program of Advanced Religious Studies at Union Theological Seminary (PARS): General	1955-1965, undated
b. 96, f. 785-786	Program of Advanced Religious Studies at Union Theological Seminary (PARS): Correspondence	1954, 1959, undated
b. 96, f. 787	Program of Advanced Religious Studies at Union Theological Seminary (PARS): Courses	1963-1965, undated
b. 96, f. 788	Columbia University Seminar on Modern East Asia	1959
b. 96, f. 789	Columbia University, East Asian Institute	1952, 1953
b. 97, f. 790	Lecture notes for unidentified course: "Introductory lecture"; "Africa in Christian Perspective"	
b. 97, f. 791	Lecture notes for unidentified course: "Asia in Christian Perspective"	
b. 97, f. 792	Lecture notes for unidentified course: "Europe in Christian Perspective"	
b. 97, f. 793	Lecture notes for unidentified course: "Re: Latin America"	

# Series VIII: Personal items and memorabilia

The material of Series VIII is chronologically arranged within the following sections:

Memorabilia / biographical documentation Address books, cards Diaries, memo books Medical records Passports, military passes, identification certificates Related to family members School notebooks

Sections of photographs and postcards are informally arranged.

#### Memorabilia / biographical documentation

b. <b>126,</b> f. <b>1132</b>	Curriculum vitae, biographical sketches <u>Undated CV of Dr. Miner Searle Bates (by Union Theological Seminary)</u>	undated
b. 126, f. 1133	Certified copy of birth record	1916
b. 126, f. 1133	Army discharge	1918
b. 126, f. 1134	Hiram College years	1914-1915, undated
b. 126, f. 1135	St. John's College, Oxford	1916-1920
b. 126, f. 1136	YMCA work, Mesopotamia	1917-1918
b. <b>126</b> , f. 1137	Miscellaneous, including Bates' participation in Tokyo war crimes trials transcript of testimony before International Military Tribunal for the Far East (1946)	1921-1948
b. 126, f. 1138-1141	Miscellaneous	1950-1978, undated
b. 126, f. 1142	Artifacts	1922, undated
b. 126, f. 1143	Chinese language material	undated
	Address books, cards	
b. 127, f. 1144	Of Miner Searle Bates	
	Diaries, memo books	
b. 127, f. 1145-1149	Of Miner Searle Bates	1917, 1918, 1944-1978
	Medical records	
b. 128, f. 1150	Sampling of medical records	1941-1978
	Passports, military passes, identification certificates	
b. 128, f. 1151	Of Miner Searle Bates	1916-1968
	Material related to family members	

#### Material related to family members (continued)

b. 128, f. 1153	Miscellaneous	1926-1978, undated
	Notebooks	
b. 128, f. 1154-1155	School notes	1910, 1911, undated
	Photographs	
b. <b>129</b> , f. <b>1156</b>	Miner Searle Bates	1917, 1950, undated
b. 129, f. 1157	Family	
b. 129, f. 1158	Hiram College 1911(?)	1916
b. 129, f. 1159	China scenes and groups	
b. 129, f. 1160	Miscellaneous individuals	
b. 129, f. 1161	Miscellaneous scenes and groups	

# Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

## Subjects

Educators Missionaries Missions Missions -- China Sino-Japanese War, 1894-1895

### Names

Bates, M. Searle (Miner Searle), 1897-1978

### **Corporate Bodies**

Jinling da xue Nanking International Relief Committee National Christian Council of China Union Theological Seminary (New York, N.Y.) United Board for Christian Higher Education in Asia United Christian Missionary Society